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Commonly Used Defined Terms

The following is a list of certain acronyms and terms generally used in the industry and throughout this document:
 

CrossAmerica Partners LP and subsidiaries:
the Partnership, we, us, our CrossAmerica Partners LP
LGW Lehigh Gas Wholesale LLC
LGPR LGP Realty Holdings LP
LGWS Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc. and subsidiaries
  

Lehigh Gas Wholesale Services, Inc. and subsidiaries:
PMI Petroleum Marketers, Inc., acquired in April 2014
Erickson Erickson Oil Products, Inc., acquired in February 2015
One Stop M&J Operations, LLC, acquired in July 2015
  

CrossAmerica Partners LP related and affiliated parties:
CST CST Brands, Inc.
DMS

Dunne Manning Stores LLC (formerly known as Lehigh Gas-Ohio, LLC), an entity associated with Joseph V.
Topper, Jr., a member of the Board and related party. DMS is an operator of retail motor fuel stations. DMS purchases
substantially all of its motor fuel requirements from us on a wholesale basis under rack plus pricing. DMS leases retail
sites from us in accordance with a master lease agreement with us

General Partner CrossAmerica GP LLC. CST owns 100% of the equity interests in the sole member of the General Partner
CST Fuel Supply CST Fuel Supply LP, the Parent of CST Marketing and Supply, CST’s wholesale motor fuel supply business, which

provides wholesale fuel distribution to the majority of CST’s U.S. retail convenience stores on a fixed markup per
gallon

  

Other Defined Terms:  
Amended Omnibus
   Agreement The Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated October 1, 2014, by and among CrossAmerica, the General

Partner, Dunne Manning Inc., DMS, CST Services and Joseph V. Topper, Jr., which amends and restates the original
omnibus agreement that was executed in connection with CrossAmerica’s initial public offering on October 30, 2012

ASU Accounting Standards Update
the Board Board of Directors of our General Partner
DTW

Dealer tank wagon contracts, which are variable cent per gallon priced wholesale motor fuel distribution or supply
contracts; DTW also refers to the pricing methodology under such contracts

EBITDA Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, a non-GAAP financial measure
Exchange Act Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board
Form 10-K CrossAmerica's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015
Holiday

The franchise Holiday Stationstores acquired by CrossAmerica from S/S/G Corporation in January 2016

IDRs
Incentive Distribution Rights, which are partnership interests that provide for special distributions associated with
increasing partnership distributions. CST is the owner of 100% of the outstanding IDRs of CrossAmerica

Internal Revenue Code Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
IPO Initial public offering of CrossAmerica Partners LP
LIBOR London Interbank Offered Rate
MD&A Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
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NTI
CST’s new to industry stores opened after January 1, 2008, which is generally when CST began designing and
operating its larger format stores that accommodate broader merchandise categories and food offerings and have more
fuel dispensers than its legacy stores

Partnership Agreement the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of CrossAmerica Partners LP, dated as of October
1, 2014, as amended

Predecessor Entity Wholesale distribution business of Lehigh Gas-Ohio, LLC and real property and leasehold interests contributed in
connection with the IPO

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission
U.S. GAAP United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
Valero

Valero Energy Corporation and, where appropriate in context, to one or more of its subsidiaries, or all of them taken as
a whole



PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Thousands of Dollars, except unit data)

  June 30,  December 31,
  2016  2015

ASSETS  (Unaudited)   
Current assets:     

Cash  $ 3,255  $ 1,192

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,073 and $1,090, respectively  26,134  21,953

Accounts receivable from related parties  10,375  7,345

Inventories  13,166  15,739

Assets held for sale  2,271  3,288

Other current assets, net  7,238  4,944

Total current assets  62,439  54,461

Property and equipment, net  648,513  628,564

Intangible assets, net  81,999  82,315

Goodwill  89,109  80,821

Other assets  15,402  11,625

Total assets  $ 897,462  $ 857,786

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     
Current liabilities:     

Current portion of debt and capital lease obligations  $ 2,785  $ 8,342
Accounts payable  35,189  32,577
Accounts payable to related parties  3,060  4,692
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities  18,191  15,811
Motor fuel taxes payable  11,145  9,818

Total current liabilities  70,370  71,240

Debt and capital lease obligations, less current portion  481,850  430,632

Deferred tax liabilities  42,688  43,609

Asset retirement obligations  25,327  23,165

Other long-term liabilities  43,208  20,284

Total liabilities  663,443  588,930

Commitments and contingencies   
Equity:     

CrossAmerica Partners’ Capital     
Common units—(33,300,415 and 25,585,922 units issued and outstanding at

June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively)  234,209  374,458
Subordinated units—affiliates (0 and 7,525,000 units issued and outstanding at

June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively)  —  (105,467)

Total CrossAmerica Partners’ Capital  234,209  268,991

Noncontrolling interests  (190)  (135)

Total equity  234,019  268,856

Total liabilities and equity  $ 897,462  $ 857,786

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Thousands of Dollars, Except Unit and Per Unit Amounts)
(Unaudited)

 Three Months Ended June 30,  
Six Months Ended

June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Operating revenues(a) $ 512,644  $ 650,136  $ 880,384  $ 1,130,593

Costs of sales(b) 472,129  608,965  802,679  1,051,695

Gross profit 40,515  41,171  77,705  78,898

        

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity 4,245  1,177  8,296  2,275

Operating expenses:        
Operating expenses 16,119  20,071  31,530  37,411

General and administrative expenses 4,921  7,614  11,926  18,060

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense 14,262  11,411  27,162  22,913

Total operating expenses 35,302  39,096  70,618  78,384

Gain (loss) on sales of assets, net (102)  422  (106)  452

Operating income 9,356  3,674  15,277  3,241

Other income, net 316  190  434  249

Interest expense (5,704)  (4,743)  (10,769)  (9,021)

Income (loss) before income taxes 3,968  (879)  4,942  (5,531)

Income tax expense (benefit) 338  (907)  (457)  (2,588)

Consolidated net income (loss) 3,630  28  5,399  (2,943)

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 4  (2)  6  (7)
Net income (loss) attributable to CrossAmerica limited
   partners 3,626  30  5,393  (2,936)
Distributions to CST as holder of the incentive distribution
   rights (820)  (195)  (1,579)  (365)
Net income (loss) available to CrossAmerica limited
   partners $ 2,806  $ (165)  $ 3,814  $ (3,301)

Net income (loss) per CrossAmerica limited partner unit:       
Basic earnings per common unit $ 0.08  $ (0.01)  $ 0.11  $ (0.13)

Diluted earnings per common unit(c) $ 0.08  $ (0.01)  $ 0.11  $ (0.13)

Basic and diluted earnings per subordinated unit $ —  $ (0.01)  $ 0.11  $ (0.13)

Weighted-average CrossAmerica limited partner units:        
Basic common units 33,283,489  17,582,365  30,879,426  17,260,533

Diluted common units(c) 33,292,023  17,629,855  30,928,204  17,354,742

Basic and diluted subordinated units —  7,525,000  2,315,385  7,525,000

Total diluted common and subordinated units(c) 33,292,023  25,154,855  33,243,589  24,879,742

Distribution paid per common and subordinated units $ 0.5975  $ 0.5475  $ 1.1900  $ 1.0900
Distribution declared (with respect to each respective 
period) per common and subordinated units $ 0.6025  $ 0.5625  $ 1.2000  $ 1.1100

Supplemental information:        
(a) Includes excise taxes of: $ 20,311  $ 26,714  $ 40,204  $ 47,224

(a) Includes revenues from fuel sales to related parties of: $ 107,131  $ 139,216  $ 180,439  $ 238,140

(a) Includes income from rentals of: $ 20,351  $ 14,608  $ 39,882  $ 29,028

(b) Includes expenses from fuel sales to related parties of: $ 103,513  $ 135,431  $ 173,765  $ 231,471

(b) Includes expenses from rentals of: $ 5,019  $ 4,408  $ 9,767  $ 7,930
(c) Diluted common units are not used in the calculation of diluted earnings per common unit for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015
because to do so would be antidilutive.

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Thousands of Dollars)
(Unaudited)

  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015

Cash flows from operating activities:     
Consolidated net income (loss)  $ 5,399  $ (2,943)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash flows provided by operating activities:     

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense  27,162  22,913
Amortization of deferred financing fees  738  738

Amortization of below market leases, net  93  338

Provision for losses on doubtful accounts  67  412

Deferred income taxes  (921)  (4,075)

Equity-based employees and directors compensation expense  1,875  3,444

Amended Omnibus Agreement fees to be settled in CrossAmerica units  4,750  2,748

(Gain) loss on sales of assets, net  106  (452)

Gain on settlement of capital lease obligations  —  (25)

Inventory valuation adjustment  91  706
Changes in working capital, net of acquisitions  (2,319)  (7,343)

Net cash provided by operating activities  37,041  16,461
Cash flows from investing activities:     

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment  98  1,709
Capital expenditures  (5,524)  (5,359)

Principal payments received on notes receivable  192  616

Cash paid in connection with acquisitions, net of cash acquired  (52,350)  (123,137)

Cash paid to CST in connection with acquisitions  (2,900)  —

Net cash used in investing activities  (60,484)  (126,171)
Cash flows from financing activities:     

Borrowings under the revolving credit facility  121,445  150,652

Repayments on the revolving credit facility  (49,856)  (164,143)
Proceeds (costs) from issuance of common units  —  138,546
Repurchases of common units  (3,252)  —
Payments of long-term debt and capital lease obligations  (1,639)  (1,257)
Repayments from related party  —  2,465

Distributions paid on distribution equivalent rights  (24)  —

Distributions paid to CST as holder of the incentive distribution rights  (1,579)  (365)

Distributions paid to noncontrolling interests  (61)  (54)

Distributions paid on common and subordinated units  (39,528)  (26,714)

Net cash provided by financing activities  25,506  99,130

Net increase (decrease) in cash  2,063  (10,580)

Cash at beginning of period  1,192  15,170

Cash at end of period  $ 3,255  $ 4,590

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

7



CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1.    DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND OTHER DISCLOSURES

Description of Business

Our business consists of:

• the wholesale distribution of motor fuels;

• the retail distribution of motor fuels to end customers at sites operated by commission agents or us;

• the owning or leasing of sites used in the retail distribution of motor fuels and, in turn, generating rental income from the lease or sublease of the
sites; and

• the operation of convenience stores.

The financial statements reflect the consolidated results of CrossAmerica and its wholly owned subsidiaries. CrossAmerica’s primary operations are
conducted by the following consolidated wholly owned subsidiaries:

• LGW, which distributes motor fuels on a wholesale basis and generates qualified income under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code;

• LGPR, which functions as the real estate holding company of CrossAmerica and holds the assets that generate rental income that is qualifying
under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code; and

• LGWS, which owns and leases (or leases and sub-leases) real estate and personal property used in the retail distribution of motor fuels, as well as
provides maintenance and other services to its customers. In addition, LGWS distributes motor fuels on a retail basis and sells convenience
merchandise items to end customers at company-operated retail sites and sells motor fuel on a retail basis at sites operated by commission agents.
Income from LGWS generally is not qualifying income under Section 7704(d) of the Internal Revenue Code.

CST, a Delaware corporation, owns 100% of the membership interest in the General Partner of CrossAmerica and 100% of our IDRs. The General Partner
manages our operations and business activities. The General Partner is managed and operated by the executive officers of the General Partner, under the
oversight of the Board. As a result of its ownership of all of the membership interests in the General Partner, CST has the right to appoint all members of the
Board and therefore controls our operations even though CST does not own a majority of our common units.

As part of our business strategy with CST, we intend, when favorable market conditions exist and pending approval by the General Partner’s independent
conflicts committee and the approval of the executive committee of the Board of Directors of CST and mutual agreement upon terms and other conditions, to
purchase interests at fair market value in CST Fuel Supply, over time. As of June 30, 2016 our total equity interest in CST Fuel Supply was 17.5%. See Note
9 for discussion of the July 2016 refund of a portion of the purchase price paid in 2015 by the Partnership to CST Fuel Supply associated with the reduction in
wholesale distribution volume resulting from CST’s sale of its California and Wyoming assets.

Additionally, we have previously issued common units as consideration in the purchase of equity interests in CST Fuel Supply and the real property
associated with some of CST’s NTI convenience stores. We have previously issued, and may continue to issue, common units as payment for charges incurred
under the Amended Omnibus Agreement. Pursuant to a unit purchase program announced in September 2015, CST has also acquired our common units
through open market purchases. Through June 30, 2016, after giving effect to these transactions, CST owned 19.3% of our limited partner interests.

Interim Financial Statements

These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP for interim financial information and with
the instructions to Form 10-Q and the Exchange Act. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and notes required by U.S. GAAP for complete
financial statements. In the opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. All such adjustments are
of a normal recurring nature unless disclosed otherwise. Management believes that the disclosures made are adequate to keep the information presented from
being misleading. The financial statements contained herein should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto
included in our Form 10-K. Financial information as of June 30, 2016 and for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 included in the
consolidated financial statements has been derived from our unaudited financial statements.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial information as of December 31, 2015 has been derived from our audited financial statements and notes thereto as of that date.

Operating results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending
December 31, 2016. Our business exhibits seasonality due to our wholesale and retail sites being located in certain geographic areas that are affected by
seasonal weather and temperature trends and associated changes in retail customer activity during different seasons. Historically, sales volumes have been
highest in the second and third quarters (during the summer activity months) and lowest during the winter months in the first and fourth quarters.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications were made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation, as discussed further in Note 16. Such reclassifications
had no effect on net income or total equity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual
results and outcomes could differ from those estimates and assumptions. On an ongoing basis, management reviews its estimates based on currently available
information. Changes in facts and circumstances could result in revised estimates and assumptions.

Significant Accounting Policies

There have been no material changes to the significant accounting policies described in our Form 10-K.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02—Leases (Topic 842). This standard modifies existing guidance for reporting organizations that enter into
leases to increase transparency by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2018, and requires a modified
retrospective approach to adoption. Early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this new guidance in addition to the timing
of adoption.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09—Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting. This standard is issued as part of a simplification initiative involving several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions,
including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities and classification on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09
is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2016. The approach to adoption is dependent upon which
amendments are applicable. Early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this new guidance in addition to the timing of
adoption.

Certain other new financial accounting pronouncements have become effective for our financial statements but the adoption of these pronouncements will not
affect our financial position or results of operations, nor will they require any additional disclosures.

Concentration Risk

DMS is an operator of retail sites that purchases a significant portion of its motor fuel requirements from us on a wholesale basis and then re-sells motor fuel
on a retail basis. DMS also leases real estate from us. The financial results of DMS are not consolidated with ours. For the three and six months ended
June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica distributed approximately 17% of its total wholesale distribution volumes to DMS and DMS accounted for approximately 30%
of our rental income. For more information regarding transactions with DMS, see Note 9 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

As of June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica’s total equity interest in CST Fuel Supply is 17.5%. CST Fuel Supply provides wholesale fuel distribution to the majority
of CST’s U.S. retail convenience stores. Valero supplied substantially all of the motor fuel purchased by CST Fuel Supply during all periods presented.
During the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, CST Fuel Supply purchased approximately 0.5 billion and 1.0 billion gallons of motor fuel from
Valero.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica distributed 8% of its total wholesale distribution volume to CST convenience stores that are
not supplied by CST Fuel Supply and received 22% of its rental income from CST.

For the three months ended June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica received 10% of its rental income from a third party dealer that operates many of the sites acquired
through the PMI and One Stop acquisitions.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. ACQUISITIONS

Acquisition of franchise Holiday Stationstores

On March 29, 2016, we closed on the acquisition of 31 franchise Holiday stores and 3 company-operated liquor stores from S/S/G Corporation for
approximately $52.4 million, including working capital. Of the 34 company-operated stores, 31 are located in Wisconsin and 3 are located in Minnesota. The
acquisition was funded by borrowings under our credit facility.

The preliminary fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the date of acquisition were as follows (in thousands):

Current assets (excluding inventories) $ 41
Inventories 3,536
Property and equipment 33,055
Intangibles 7,710
Goodwill 9,126
Current liabilities (56)
Asset retirement obligations (1,062)

   Total consideration, net of cash acquired $ 52,350

The fair value of inventory was estimated at retail selling price less estimated costs to sell and a reasonable profit allowance for the selling effort.

The fair value of property and equipment, which consisted of land, buildings and equipment, was based on a cost approach. The buildings and equipment are
being depreciated on a straight-line basis, with estimated remaining useful lives of 20 years for the buildings and 5 to 10 years for equipment.

The $6.5 million fair value of the wholesale fuel distribution rights included in intangibles was based on an income approach and management believes the
level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. The wholesale fuel distribution rights are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over an estimated useful life of approximately 10 years.

The $1.0 million fair value of the discount related to lease agreements with below average market value was based on an income approach, and management
believes the level and timing of cash flows represent relevant market participant assumptions. These intangible assets are being amortized on a straight-line
basis over the term of the respective lease agreements, with an estimated weighted average useful life of 5 years.

Goodwill recorded is primarily attributable to the end-customer relationships not eligible for recognition as an intangible asset. Of the goodwill recorded, $1.8
million was assigned to the Wholesale segment and $7.3 million was assigned to the Retail segment. Goodwill deductible for tax purposes amounted to $29.0
million.

Operating revenues since the date of acquisition were $27.9 million and $28.7 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, respectively.

Management is reviewing the valuation and confirming the result to determine the final purchase price allocation.

Finalization of Purchase Accounting associated with the Erickson Acquisition

In the first quarter of 2016, we recorded a $1.1 million receivable for a working capital settlement as agreed to with the sellers, reducing net consideration and
resulting goodwill. We finalized the purchase accounting for this acquisition with the receivable related to the working capital settlement being the only
adjustment recorded in 2016.

Purchase of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts from CST

In February 2016, CrossAmerica purchased 21 independent dealer contracts and 11 subwholesaler contracts from CST for $2.9 million. This transaction was
approved on behalf of CrossAmerica by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and by the executive committee of the board of directors of CST.
See Note 9 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pro Forma Results

Our pro forma results, giving effect to the Holiday acquisition as well as the February 2015 Erickson and July 2015 One Stop acquisitions and assuming an
acquisition date of January 1, 2015 for each, would have been (in thousands, except per unit amounts):

  Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015  2016  2015

Total revenues  $ 512,644  $ 760,444  $ 902,682  $ 1,315,939

Net income (loss)  $ 3,582  $ 166  $ 5,082  $ (3,515)

Net income (loss) per limited partnership unit  $ 0.08  $ —  $ 0.11  $ (0.16)

Subsequent Event—Acquisition of State Oil

On July 15, 2016, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire certain assets of State Oil Company, consisting of 55 lessee dealer accounts, 25
independent dealer accounts, three company-operated locations, two non-fuel sites and certain other assets located in the greater Chicago market for
approximately $45 million, including working capital. The acquisition is subject to customary conditions to closing and is expected to close in the third
quarter of 2016.

Note 3. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

CrossAmerica has classified three and seven sites as held for sale at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, as they did not fit the Partnership's
strategy and are expected to be sold within a year of the date they were initially classified as held for sale. Assets held for sale were as follows (in thousands):

  June 30,  December 31,
  2016  2015

Land  $ 942  $ 1,695

Buildings and site improvements  1,073  1,558

Equipment and other  1,009  1,225

Total  3,024  4,478

Less accumulated depreciation  (753)  (1,190)

Assets held for sale  $ 2,271  $ 3,288

Note 4. INVENTORIES

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

  June 30,  December 31,
  2016  2015
Convenience store merchandise  $ 9,360  $ 11,354
Motor fuel  3,806  4,385

Inventories  $ 13,166  $ 15,739
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following (in thousands):

  June 30,  December 31,
  2016  2015

Land  $ 258,473  $ 251,632
Buildings and site improvements  328,893  318,530

Leasehold improvements  9,256  8,867

Equipment and other  161,190  140,264

Construction in progress  3,423  3,666
Property and equipment, at cost  761,235  722,959

Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (112,722)  (94,395)

Property and equipment, net  $ 648,513  $ 628,564

PMI’s transportation assets were sold in May 2015 for $0.9 million, resulting in a gain of $0.5 million.

Note 6. GOODWILL

Changes in goodwill during the six months ended June 30, 2016 consisted of the following (in thousands):

 
Wholesale
Segment  

Retail 
Segment  Consolidated

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 61,548  $ 19,273  $ 80,821

Acquisitions 1,720  6,568  8,288

Reassignment 5,341  (5,341)  —

Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 68,609  $ 20,500  $ 89,109

Our business model includes the conversion of retail sites from company-operated sites to dealer-operated sites. As a result of these conversions, there is a
reduction in future cash flows in the Retail segment and an expected increase in future cash flows that will be received by the Wholesale segment subsequent
to the date of conversion. The effect of these conversions, for the period ended June 30, 2016, is a $5.3 million reassignment of goodwill originally assigned
to the Retail segment to the Wholesale segment.

Note 7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

  June 30, 2016  December 31, 2015

  Gross Amount  
Accumulated
Amortization  

Net Carrying
Amount  Gross Amount  

Accumulated
Amortization  

Net Carrying
Amount

Wholesale fuel supply
contracts/rights  $ 111,671  $ (38,310)  $ 73,361  $ 105,181  $ (32,498)  $ 72,683

Trademarks  1,204  (600)  604  2,494  (1,264)  1,230
Covenant not to compete  4,131  (2,045)  2,086  3,911  (1,600)  2,311
Below market leases  12,081  (6,133)  5,948  11,181  (5,090)  6,091

Total intangible assets  $ 129,087  $ (47,088)  $ 81,999  $ 122,767  $ (40,452)  $ 82,315
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Note 8. DEBT

Our balances for long-term debt and capital lease obligations are as follows (in thousands):

  June 30,  December 31,
  2016  2015

$550 million revolving credit facility  $ 430,000  $ 358,412

Financing obligation associated with Rocky Top acquisition  —  26,250

Note payable  850  876

Lease financing obligations  58,454  58,842
Total debt and lease financing obligations  489,304  444,380

Current portion  2,785  8,342
Noncurrent portion  486,519  436,038

Deferred financing fees  (4,669)  (5,406)

Total  $ 481,850  $ 430,632

The following represents principal payments due on our revolving credit facility and note payable for the next five years, excluding lease financing
obligations (in thousands):

Remainder of 2016  $ 28
2017  57
2018  765
2019  430,000

Total  $ 430,850

Our $550 million revolving credit facility is secured by substantially all of the assets of CrossAmerica and its subsidiaries. Letters of credit outstanding at
June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 totaled $14.9 million and $16.0 million, respectively. The amount of availability at June 30, 2016 under the revolving
credit facility, after taking into account debt covenant constraints, was $80.4 million. In connection with future acquisitions, the revolving credit facility
requires, among other things, that we have, after giving effect to such acquisition, at least $20.0 million, in the aggregate, of borrowing availability under the
revolving credit facility and unrestricted cash on the balance sheet on the date of such acquisition.

Renegotiation of Rocky Top Purchase Obligation

In connection with the Rocky Top acquisition completed in September 2013, we entered into a deferred seller financing arrangement, which obligated
CrossAmerica to purchase certain sites in approximately equal parts over a 5-year period for an average of $5.2 million per year beginning in 2016 at an
approximate 7.7% capitalization rate. In June 2016, we renegotiated the terms with the sellers, eliminating the deferred seller financing obligation and
agreeing to terms of a new lease of the assets for an initial term of 15 years and 8 months with four renewal options of five years each. Under the triple net
lease, annual rent is initially $1.8 million based on a 6.5% capitalization rate and increases 1.5% per year. However, because of the continuing involvement
CrossAmerica has with the sites through the lease and sublease of the properties, CrossAmerica is required to continue to carry the liability on its balance
sheet at its current fair value, estimated to be its carrying value. CrossAmerica reclassified the liability from debt and capital lease obligations to accrued
expenses and other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

Financial Covenants and Interest Rate

Our revolving credit facility contains financial covenants consisting of a total leverage ratio (as defined in the credit facility) for the most recently completed
four fiscal quarters of less than or equal to 5.00 to 1.00 and a consolidated interest coverage ratio (as defined in the credit facility) of greater than or equal to
2.75 to 1.00. As of June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica was in compliance with these covenants. The total leverage ratio covenant is 5.00 to 1.00 for the two
quarters following a material acquisition (as defined in the credit facility). As such, the total leverage ratio steps down to 4.50 to 1.00 on December 31, 2016
assuming there are no material acquisitions for the remainder of 2016.

Outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility bear interest at the LIBOR plus a margin of 3.00%. Our borrowings had an interest rate of 3.46%
as of June 30, 2016.
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Note 9. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with CST

Fuel Sales and Rental Income

CrossAmerica sells wholesale motor fuel under a master fuel distribution agreement to 43 CST convenience stores and leases real property on 74 retail sites
to CST under a master lease agreement each having initial 10-year terms. The fuel distribution agreement provides CrossAmerica with a fixed wholesale
mark-up per gallon. The master lease agreement is a triple net lease.

Revenues from wholesale fuel sales and real property rental income from CST were as follows (in thousands):

 

  
Three Months Ended June

30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015  2016  2015
Revenues from motor fuel sales to CST  $ 32,825  $ 41,134  $ 56,082  $ 69,674

Rental income from CST
 $ 4,317  $ 1,406  $ 8,634  $ 2,787

Receivables from CST were $3.1 million and $2.3 million at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively, related to these transactions.

CST Fuel Supply Equity Interests

CST Fuel Supply provides wholesale motor fuel distribution to the majority of CST’s U.S. Retail convenience stores on a fixed markup per gallon.
CrossAmerica owned a 17.5% and 5% total interest in CST Fuel Supply at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. CrossAmerica accounts for the income
derived from its 17.5% equity interest of CST Fuel Supply as “Income from CST Fuel Supply” on its statement of operations, which amounted to $4.2 million
and $1.2 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and $8.3 million and $2.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Purchase of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts from CST

In February 2016, CrossAmerica purchased 21 independent dealer contracts and 11 subwholesaler contracts from CST for $2.9 million with historic annual
volumes of approximately 20 million gallons. This transaction was approved on behalf of CrossAmerica by the independent conflicts committee of the Board
and by the executive committee of the board of directors of CST. Since this was a transaction between entities under common control, the $2.9 million
purchase price was accounted for as a distribution recorded in partners’ capital.

CrossAmerica purchases the fuel supplied to these 32 sites from CST Fuel Supply, of which CrossAmerica owns a 17.5% interest, and resells the wholesale
motor fuel to the independent dealers and subwholesalers. CrossAmerica purchased $6.0 million and $9.0 million of fuel from CST Fuel Supply for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2016, respectively, in connection with these 32 sites.

Subsequent Event—Refund payment related to CST sale of California and Wyoming Assets

On July 7, 2016, we announced that CST provided a refund payment to the purchase price paid by us for our 17.5% interest in CST Fuel Supply resulting
from the sale by CST of 79 retail sites in California and Wyoming to 7-Eleven, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary, SEI Fuel Services, Inc., to which CST
Fuel Supply no longer supplies motor fuel. The purpose of the refund payment was to make CrossAmerica whole for the decrease in the value of its interest in
CST Fuel Supply arising from sales volume decreases. The total refund payment received by the Partnership, as approved by the independent conflicts
committee of the Board and by the executive committee of the board of directors of CST, was approximately $18.2 million.

IDR and Common Unit Distributions

We distributed $2 million to CST related to its ownership of our IDRs and $8 million related to its 19.3% investment in our common units during the six
months ended June 30, 2016. CST received cash distributions of $0.3 million related to its investment in our IDRs and $1.6 million related to its 6.04%
ownership of our common units during the six months ended June 30, 2015.

Wholesale Motor Fuel Sales and Real Estate Rentals

DMS is an entity affiliated with Joseph V. Topper, Jr., a member of the Board. DMS is an operator of convenience stores that purchases motor fuel from us on
a wholesale basis in accordance with a master fuel purchase agreement between DMS and
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CrossAmerica. DMS also leases certain retail site real estate from us in accordance with a master lease agreement between DMS and CrossAmerica.

Revenues from motor fuel sales and rental income from DMS were as follows (in thousands):

  Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015  2016  2015
Revenues from motor fuel sales to DMS  $ 74,306  $ 98,082  $ 124,357  $ 168,466

Rental income from DMS
 $ 5,488  $ 5,962  $ 11,223  $ 11,888

Motor fuel is sold to DMS at our cost plus a fixed mark-up per gallon. Receivables from DMS totaled $10.4 million and $7.3 million at June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015, respectively.

Topstar Enterprises is an entity affiliated with Joseph V. Topper, Jr. Topstar is an operator of convenience stores that leases retail site real estate from us, but
does not purchase fuel from us. Revenues from rental income from Topstar Enterprises was $0.1 million and $0.2 million for both the three and six months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

CrossAmerica leases real estate from certain entities affiliated with Joseph V. Topper, Jr. Rent expense paid to these entities was $0.2 million and $0.3 million
for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and $0.4 million and $0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Amended Omnibus Agreement and Management Fees

CrossAmerica incurred $3.6 million and $2.9 million in charges for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and $8.1 million and $7.2 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, including incentive compensation costs and non-cash stock-based compensation expense under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement, which are recorded as a component of operating expenses and general and administrative expenses in the statement of
operations. Amounts payable to CST related to these transactions were $7.4 million and $8.3 million at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
Effective January 1, 2016, the fixed billing component of the management fee was increased to $856,000 per month, which was approved on behalf of
CrossAmerica by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and by the executive committee of the board of directors of CST. CST and CrossAmerica
have the right to negotiate the amount of the management fee on an annual basis, or more often as circumstances require. See Note 12 of the Condensed Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Maintenance and Environmental Costs

Certain maintenance and environmental monitoring and remediation activities are performed by a related party of Joseph V. Topper, Jr. as approved by the
independent conflicts committee of the Board. CrossAmerica incurred charges with this related party of $0.2 million and $0.6 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and $0.8 million and $0.7 million in charges with this related party for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

Aircraft Usage Costs

From time to time, CrossAmerica leases, on a non-exclusive basis, an aircraft owned by a group of individuals that includes Joseph V. Topper, Jr. and John B.
Reilly, III, members of our Board, as previously approved in August 2013 by the independent conflicts committee of the Board. Lease costs incurred by
CrossAmerica for use of these aircrafts were insignificant for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Principal Executive Offices

The principal executive offices of CrossAmerica are in Allentown, Pennsylvania in an office space leased by CST from a related party of Joseph V. Topper, Jr.
and John B. Reilly, III. Rent expense charged by CST to the Partnership was $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
and $0.3 million and $0.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Note 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation Matters

We are from time to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of business. These actions typically
seek, among other things, compensation for alleged personal injury, breach of contract and/or property damages, environmental damages, employment-related
claims and damages, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or injunctive or declaratory relief. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and
proceedings, we record a reserve when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. In addition, we
disclose matters for which management believes a material loss is at least reasonably possible. None of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, are
expected to have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows. In all instances, management has
assessed the matter based on current information and made a judgment concerning its potential outcome, giving due consideration to the nature of the claim,
the amount and nature of damages sought and the probability of success. Management’s judgment may prove materially inaccurate, and such judgment is
made subject to the known uncertainties of litigation.

Environmental Matters

Environmental liabilities related to the sites contributed to CrossAmerica in connection with our IPO have not been assigned to CrossAmerica, and are still
the responsibility of the Predecessor Entities. Under the Amended Omnibus Agreement, certain of the Predecessor Entities must indemnify CrossAmerica for
any costs or expenses that it incurs for environmental liabilities and third-party claims, regardless of when a claim is made, that are based on environmental
conditions in existence prior to the closing of the IPO for contributed sites. The Predecessor Entities’ environmental liabilities and indemnification assets
associated with contributed sites amounted to $6.6 million and $5.3 million at June 30, 2016, respectively.

Note 11. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

General

CrossAmerica measures and reports certain financial and non-financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (exit price). U.S. GAAP specifies a
three-level hierarchy that is used when measuring and disclosing fair value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices available in
active markets (i.e., observable inputs) and the lowest priority to data lacking transparency (i.e., unobservable inputs). An instrument’s categorization within
the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of significant input to its valuation. The following is a description of the three hierarchy levels.

Level 1—Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities. Active
markets are considered to be those in which transactions for the assets or liabilities occur in sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2—Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
asset or liability. This category includes quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in inactive markets.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs are not corroborated by market data. This category is comprised of financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
whose fair value is estimated based on internally developed models or methodologies using significant inputs that are generally less readily
observable from objective sources.

Transfers into or out of any hierarchy level are recognized at the end of the reporting period in which the transfers occurred. There were no transfers between
any levels in 2016 or 2015.

As further discussed in Note 13 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, CrossAmerica has accrued for unvested phantom units and
vested and unvested profits interests as a liability and adjusts that liability on a recurring basis based on the market price of CrossAmerica’s common units
each balance sheet date. Such fair value measurements are deemed Level 1 measurements.

Financial Instruments

The fair value of CrossAmerica’s accounts receivable, notes receivable, and accounts payable approximated their carrying values as of June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2015 due to the short-term maturity of these instruments. The fair value of the revolving credit facility approximated its carrying values of
$430.0 million as of June 30, 2016 and $358.4 million as of December 31, 2015,
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due to the frequency with which interest rates are reset and the consistency of the market spread. The fair value of debt, classified as a Level 2 measurement,
was estimated using an income approach by discounting future cash flows at estimated current cost of funding rates.

Note 12. PARTNERS’ CAPITAL

On February 25, 2016, the first business day after the payment of the previously announced distribution of $0.5925 per common unit for the fourth quarter of
2015, the Board determined that the subordination period under the Partnership Agreement had ended. At that time, each of the 7,525,000 outstanding
subordinated units converted into one common unit.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica issued 884 and 94,601 common units (net of units withheld for income taxes) as a result of
the vesting of phantom units and conversion of profit interests previously issued primarily to CST employees who provide services principally to
CrossAmerica. See Note 13 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

As approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and the executive committee of CST’s board of directors, CrossAmerica and CST mutually
agreed to settle, from time to time, the amounts due under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement in newly issued common units representing limited
partner interests in CrossAmerica. On March 31 and May 9, 2016, CrossAmerica issued 145,137 and 83,218 common units as partial payment for the
amounts incurred for the fourth quarter of 2015 and first quarter of 2016, respectively, under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement. See Note 9 of
the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

On August 2, 2016, CrossAmerica issued 101,087 common units to CST Services as payment for a portion of the second quarter 2016 management fee.

Common Unit Repurchase Program

In November 2015, the Board approved a common unit repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act authorizing us to repurchase up to an
aggregate of $25.0 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. Under the program, CrossAmerica may make
purchases in the open market in accordance with Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a trading plan under
Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act or otherwise. Any purchases will be funded from available cash on hand. The common unit repurchase program does not
require CrossAmerica to acquire any specific number of common units and may be suspended or terminated by us at any time without prior notice. The
purchases will not be made from any officer, director or control person of CrossAmerica or CST. The following table shows the purchases during the six
months ended June 30, 2016:

Period  
Total Number of
Units Purchased  

Average Price Paid
per Unit  

Total Cost of Units
Purchased  

Amount Remaining
under the Program

January 1 - March 31, 2016  112,492  $ 24.47  $ 2,752,240  $ 18,644,689
April 1 - June 30, 2016  20,971  $ 23.86  $ 500,413  $ 18,144,276

January 1 - June 30, 2016  133,463  $ 24.37  $ 3,252,653  $ 18,144,276
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Distributions

Quarterly distribution activity for 2016 was as follows:

Quarter Ended  Record Date  Payment Date  
Cash Distribution (per

unit)  
Cash Distribution (in

thousands)

December 31, 2015  February 12, 2016  February 24, 2016  $ 0.5925  $ 19,618
March 31, 2016  May 19, 2016  May 31, 2016  $ 0.5975  $ 19,910

The Board approved a quarterly distribution of $0.6025 per unit attributable to the second quarter of 2016. The distribution is payable on August 15, 2016 to
all unitholders of record on August 8, 2016.

Distributions to CST as holder of the IDRs were $0.8 million and $1.6 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, respectively. Payments on
the IDRs increased due to an increase in the distribution paid per unit and an increase in the number of units outstanding on which the distribution is based.

Partners’ Capital

The following table is a rollforward of our equity for the six months ended June 30, 2016 (in thousands):

  Limited Partners’ Interest       

  
Common

Unitholders  
Subordinated

Units - Affiliates  

Incentive
Distribution

Rights  
Noncontrolling

Interest  Total Equity
  Units  Dollars  Units  Dollars  Dollars  Dollars  Dollars

Balance at December 31, 2015  25,585  $ 374,458  7,525  $ (105,467)  $ —  $ (135)  $ 268,856

Net income and comprehensive income    3,548    266  1,579  6  5,399

Distributions paid    (35,093)    (4,459)  (1,579)  (61)  (41,192)

Conversion of subordinated units  7,525  (109,660)  (7,525)  109,660  —  —  —
Distribution to CST in connection with the
purchase of dealer contracts    (2,900)    —  —  —  (2,900)

Repurchase of common units  (133)  (3,253)    —  —  —  (3,253)
Issuance of units to CST for the payment of
management fees  228  5,255    —  —  —  5,255
Issuance of units for vesting of equity based award
and profits interests  95  2,281    —  —  —  2,281

Other    (427)    —  —  —  (427)

Balance at June 30, 2016  33,300  $ 234,209  —  $ —  $ —  $ (190)  $ 234,019

Note 13. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

Overview

We record equity-based compensation as a component of general and administrative expenses in the statement of operations. Compensation expense was $0.6
million and $0.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and $1.9 million and $3.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and
2015, respectively.

CrossAmerica Equity-Based Awards

CrossAmerica grants equity-based awards to employees of CST who perform services for CrossAmerica pursuant to the Amended Omnibus Agreement. As
these grants may be settled in cash, unvested phantom units and vested and unvested profits interests receive fair value variable accounting treatment. As
such, they are measured at fair value at each balance sheet reporting date and the cumulative compensation cost recognized is classified as a liability, which is
included in accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. The balance of the accrual at June 30, 2016 and December 31,
2015 totaled $1.2 million and $3.3 million, respectively.
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CST Awards

CST equity-based awards of approximately 102,000 and 155,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, were granted to certain
employees of CST for services rendered on behalf of CrossAmerica. Expense associated with these awards that was charged to CrossAmerica under the
Amended Omnibus Agreement was $0.3 million and $0.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 and $1.0 million and $1.7 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Awards to Members of the Board

In December 2015, the Partnership issued 11,476 non-vested phantom units to non-employee directors of the Board as a portion of director compensation.
Such awards vest in December 2016.

The liability for these awards at June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015, including previously issued fully vested profits interests that have not been converted
into common units, was $0.2 million and $0.4 million, respectively. The associated compensation expense was not significant for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

Note 14. NET INCOME PER LIMITED PARTNER UNIT

Under the Partnership Agreement, a subsidiary of CST, as the holder of CrossAmerica’s IDRs, has a contractual interest in distributions from CrossAmerica
that are increasing percentages starting at 15% of quarterly distributions out of the operating surplus (as defined in our Partnership Agreement) in excess of
$0.5031 per limited partner unit.

In addition to the common units, CrossAmerica has identified the IDRs as participating securities and computes income per unit using the two-class method
under which any excess of distributions declared over net income shall be allocated to the partners based on their respective sharing of income as specified in
the Partnership Agreement. Net income per unit applicable to limited partners (including common and subordinated unitholders) is computed by dividing the
limited partners’ interest in net income (loss), after deducting the IDRs, by the weighted-average number of outstanding common units.
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The following tables provide a reconciliation of net income (loss) and weighted-average units used in computing basic and diluted net income (loss) per
limited partner unit for the following periods (in thousands, except unit and per unit amounts):

  Three Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015

  

Common
Units

 
Subordinated Units

 
Common Units

 
Subordinated Units

Numerator:         
Distributions paid(a)  $ 19,921  $ —  $ 9,324  $ 4,120

Allocation of distributions in excess of net
income(b)

 (17,115)  —  (9,452)  (4,157)

Limited partners’ interest in net income -
basic  2,806  —  (128)  (37)

Adjustment for phantom units  —  —  —  —

Limited partners’ interest in net income -
diluted  $ 2,806  $ —  $ (128)  $ (37)

         

Denominator:
        

Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding - basic  33,283,489  —  17,582,365  7,525,000

Adjustment for phantom units  8,534  —  —  —
Weighted average limited partnership units

outstanding - diluted(c)  33,292,023  —  17,582,365  7,525,000

         

Net income (loss) per limited partnership unit
- basic  $ 0.08  $ —  $ (0.01)  $ (0.01)

Net income (loss) per limited partnership unit
- diluted  $ 0.08  $ —  $ (0.01)  $ (0.01)

  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015

  

Common
Units

 
Subordinated Units

 
Common Units

 
Subordinated Units

Numerator:         
Distributions paid(a)  $ 35,093  $ 4,459  $ 18,512  $ 8,202

Allocation of distributions in excess of net
income(b)

 (31,545)  (4,193)  (20,811)  (9,204)

Limited partners’ interest in net income - basic  3,548  266  (2,299)  (1,002)

Adjustment for phantom units  1  (1)  —  —

Limited partners’ interest in net income -
diluted  $ 3,549  $ 265  $ (2,299)  $ (1,002)

         

Denominator:
        

Weighted average limited partnership units
outstanding - basic  30,879,426  2,315,385  17,620,533  7,525,000

Adjustment for phantom units  48,778  —  —  —
Weighted average limited partnership units

outstanding - diluted(c)  30,928,204  2,315,385  17,620,533  7,525,000

         

Net income (loss) per limited partnership unit
- basic  $ 0.11  $ 0.11  $ (0.13)  $ (0.13)

Net income (loss) per limited partnership unit
- diluted  $ 0.11  $ 0.11  $ (0.13)  $ (0.13)
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(a) Distributions paid per unit were $0.5975 and $0.5475 during the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Distributions paid per unit
were $1.1900 and $1.0900 during the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

(b) Allocation of distributions in excess of net income is based on a pro rata proportion to the common and subordinated units as outlined in the Partnership
Agreement.

(c) Excludes 47,490 and 94,209 potentially dilutive securities from the calculation of diluted earnings per common unit because to do so would be
antidilutive for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, respectively.

Note 15. INCOME TAXES

As a limited partnership, we are not subject to federal and state income taxes, however our corporate subsidiaries are subject to income taxes. Income tax
attributable to CrossAmerica’s taxable income, which may differ significantly from income for financial statement purposes, is assessed at the individual
limited partner unit holder level. CrossAmerica is subject to a statutory requirement that non-qualifying income, as defined by the Internal Revenue Code,
cannot exceed 10% of total gross income for the calendar year. If non-qualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, CrossAmerica would be taxed as a
corporation. The non-qualifying income did not exceed the statutory limit in any period presented.

Certain activities that generate non-qualifying income are conducted through LGWS. LGWS is a tax paying corporate subsidiary of CrossAmerica that is
subject to federal and state income taxes. Current and deferred income taxes are recognized on the earnings of LGWS. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and are measured using enacted tax rates.

CrossAmerica recorded income tax expense of $0.3 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and income tax benefits of $0.9 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2015 and $0.5 million and $2.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, as a result of earnings
generated and losses incurred by its corporate subsidiaries. The effective tax rate differs from the combined federal and state statutory rate because only
LGWS is subject to income tax.

The tax benefit for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015 included a $0.4 million decrease in the valuation allowance.

Note 16. SEGMENT REPORTING

We conduct our business in two segments: 1) the Wholesale segment and 2) the Retail segment. The wholesale segment includes the wholesale distribution of
motor fuel to the lessee dealer, independent dealer, DMS and CST customer groups. We have exclusive motor fuel distribution contracts with lessee dealers
who lease the property from us. We also have exclusive distribution contracts with independent dealers to distribute motor fuel but do not collect rent from
the independent dealers. Similar to lessee dealers, we have motor fuel distribution agreements with DMS and CST and collect rent from both. The Retail
segment includes the sale of convenience merchandise items, the retail sale of motor fuel at company-operated sites and the retail sale of motor fuel at sites
operated by commission agents. A commission agent is a retail site where we retain title to the motor fuel inventory and sell it directly to our end user
customers. At commission agent sites, we manage motor fuel inventory pricing and retain the gross profit on motor fuel sales. We pay a commission to the
agent who operates the retail site.

As part of our evaluation of the economic performance of our retail sites, we will from time to time convert company-owned convenience stores from our
Retail segment to our lessee dealer customer group in our Wholesale segment. During the first six months of 2016, we converted 70 company-operated
convenience stores from our Retail segment to our lessee dealer customer group in our Wholesale segment. As such, we no longer generate revenues from the
retail sale of motor fuel or merchandise at these stores subsequent to the date of conversion and we no longer incur retail operating expenses related to these
sites. However, we continue to supply these sites with motor fuel on a wholesale basis pursuant to the fuel supply contract with the lessee dealer. Further, we
continue to own/lease the property and earn rental income under lease/sublease agreements with the lessee dealers under triple net leases. The lessee dealer
owns all motor fuel and convenience merchandise and retains all gross profit on such operating activities.

Prior to 2016, CrossAmerica netted lease executory costs such as real estate taxes, maintenance, and utilities that CrossAmerica paid and re-billed to
customers on its statement of operations. During the first quarter of 2016, CrossAmerica began accounting for such amounts as rent income and operating
expenses and reflected this change in presentation retrospectively. This change resulted in a $2.5 million and $5.1 million increase in rent and other income
and operating expenses for the wholesale segment for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015, respectively.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unallocated items consist primarily of general and administrative expenses, depreciation, amortization and accretion expense, gains on sales of assets, net,
and the elimination of the Retail segment’s intersegment cost of revenues from motor fuel sales against the Wholesale segment’s intersegment revenues from
motor fuel sales. The profit in ending inventory generated by the intersegment motor fuel sales is also eliminated. Total assets by segment are not presented as
management does not currently assess performance or allocate resources based on that data.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table reflects activity related to our reportable segments (in thousands):

  Wholesale  Retail  Unallocated  Consolidated

Three Months Ended June 30, 2016         

Revenues from fuel sales to external customers  $ 366,838  $ 91,701  $ —  $ 458,539

Intersegment revenues from fuel sales  67,209  —  (67,209)  —

Revenues from food and merchandise sales  —  33,297  —  33,297

Rent income  18,997  1,354  —  20,351

Other revenue  457  —  —  457

Total revenues  $ 453,501  $ 126,352  $ (67,209)  $ 512,644

         

Income from CST Fuel Supply Equity  $ 4,245  $ —  $ — $ 4,245

Operating income (loss)  $ 25,900  $ 2,728  $ (19,272)  $ 9,356
   

Three Months Ended June 30, 2015         

Revenues from fuel sales to external customers  $ 445,576  $ 147,207  $ —  $ 592,783

Intersegment revenues from fuel sales  109,195  —  (109,195)  —

Revenues from food and merchandise sales  —  42,397  —  42,397

Rent income  13,230  1,378  —  14,608

Other revenue  225  123  —  348

Total revenues  $ 568,226  $ 191,105  $ (109,195)  $ 650,136

         

Income from CST Fuel Supply Equity  $ 1,177  $ —  $ —  $ 1,177

Operating income (loss)  $ 17,682  $ 4,595  $ (18,603)  $ 3,674
         

  Wholesale  Retail  Unallocated  Consolidated
Six Months Ended June 30, 2016

        

Revenues from fuel sales to external customers  $ 610,241  $ 165,739  $ —  $ 775,980

Intersegment revenues from fuel sales  115,646  —  (115,646)  —

Revenues from food and merchandise sales  —  63,746  —  63,746

Rent income  37,196  2,686  —  39,882

Other revenue  776  —  —  776

Total revenues  $ 763,859  $ 232,171  $ (115,646)  $ 880,384

         

Income from CST Fuel Supply Equity  $ 8,296  $ —  $ —  $ 8,296

Operating income (loss)  $ 49,941  $ 4,398  $ (39,062)  $ 15,277
   

Six Months Ended June 30, 2015
        

Revenues from fuel sales to external customers  $ 776,111  $ 253,400  $ —  $ 1,029,511

Intersegment revenues from fuel sales  176,534  —  (176,534)  —

Revenues from food and merchandise sales  —  71,026  —  71,026



Rent income  26,294  2,734  —  29,028

Other revenue  905  123  —  1,028

Total revenues  $ 979,844  $ 327,283  $ (176,534)  $ 1,130,593

         

Income from CST Fuel Supply Equity  $ 2,275  $ —  $ —  $ 2,275

Operating income (loss)  $ 35,284  $ 8,640  $ (40,683)  $ 3,241

23



CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

In order to determine net cash provided by operating activities, net income is adjusted by, among other things, changes in current assets and current liabilities
as follows (in thousands):

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015

Decrease (increase):    

Accounts receivable $ (2,711)  $ (7,053)

Accounts receivable from related parties (3,030)  (594)

Inventories 4,914  1,597

Other current assets (1,136)  2,046

Other assets (3,234)  322

Increase (decrease):    

Accounts payable 2,467  5,708

Accounts payable to related parties (2,374)  (3,603)

Motor fuel taxes payable (1,698)  380

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
1,327  (6,431)

Other long-term liabilities
3,156  285

Changes in working capital, net of acquisitions $ (2,319)  $ (7,343)

The above changes in current assets and current liabilities may differ from changes between amounts reflected in the applicable balance sheets for the
respective periods due to acquisitions.

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (in thousands):

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015

Cash paid for interest
$ 10,049  $ 8,273

Cash paid for income taxes
$ 1,241  $ 547

Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities (in thousands):

 Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015
Sale of property and equipment in Section 1031 like-kind exchange

transactions $ 1,300  $ —

Removal of property and equipment and capital lease obligation for sales
terminated from Getty lease

$ —  $ (1,333)
Acquisition of equity investment in CST Fuel Supply funded by issuance of

common units $ —  $ 60,352
Issuance of capital lease obligations and recognition of asset
     retirement obligation related to Getty lease $ 1,240  $ —
Amended Omnibus Agreement fees settled in CrossAmerica
     common units $ 4,750  $ 2,748

Note 18. TERMINATION BENEFITS



As a result of the continued integration of certain processes and systems for our recently acquired businesses, CrossAmerica committed to a workforce
reduction in 2015 affecting certain employees in our Retail segment and has accrued substantially all termination costs as of June 30, 2016.
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CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A rollforward of the liability for severance and other termination benefits is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at December 31, 2015  $ 1,665
Provision for termination benefits (included in general and administrative expenses)  317
Termination benefits paid  (1,751)

Balance at June 30, 2016  $ 231
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report includes forward-looking statements, including in the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.” Forward-looking statements include the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations, business
strategies, financing plans, competitive position, credit ratings, distribution growth, potential growth opportunities, potential operating performance
improvements, potential improvements in return on capital employed, the effects of competition and the effects of future legislation or regulations. You can
identify our forward-looking statements by the words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,”
“seek,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “expect,” “objective,” “projection,” “forecast,” “guidance,” “outlook,” “effort,” “target” and similar expressions. Such
statements are based on management’s current views and assumptions, and involve risks and uncertainties that could affect expected results. These forward-
looking statements include, among other things, statements regarding:

• future retail and wholesale gross profits, including gasoline, diesel and convenience store merchandise gross profits;

• our anticipated level of capital investments, primarily through acquisitions, and the effect of these capital investments on our results of operations;

• anticipated trends in the demand for, and volumes sold of, gasoline and diesel in the regions where we operate;

• volatility in the equity and credit markets limiting access to capital markets;

• our ability to integrate acquired businesses and to transition retail sites to dealer operated sites;

• expectations regarding environmental, tax and other regulatory initiatives; and

• the effect of general economic and other conditions on our business.

In general, we based the forward-looking statements included in this quarterly report on our current expectations, estimates and projections about our
company and the industry in which we operate. We caution you that these statements are not guarantees of future performance as they involve assumptions
that, while made in good faith, may prove to be incorrect, and involve risks and uncertainties we cannot predict. In addition, we based many of these forward-
looking statements on assumptions about future events that may prove to be inaccurate. Accordingly, our actual outcomes and results may differ materially
from what we have expressed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements. Any differences could result from a variety of factors, including the following:

• availability of cash flow to pay the current quarterly distributions on our common units;

• the availability and cost of competing motor fuels;

• motor fuel price volatility or a reduction in demand for motor fuels;

• competition in the industries and geographical areas in which we operate;

• the consummation of financing, acquisition or disposition transactions and the effect thereof on our business;

• our existing or future indebtedness;

• our liquidity, results of operations and financial condition;

• failure to comply with applicable tax and other regulations or governmental policies;

• future legislation and changes in regulations or governmental policies or changes in enforcement or interpretations thereof;

• future regulations and actions that could expand the non-exempt status of employees under the Fair Labor Standards Act;

• future income tax legislation;

• changes in energy policy;

• increases in energy conservation efforts;
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• technological advances;

• the impact of worldwide economic and political conditions;

• the impact of wars and acts of terrorism;

• weather conditions or catastrophic weather-related damage;

• earthquakes and other natural disasters;

• hazards and risks associated with transporting and storing motor fuel;

• unexpected environmental liabilities;

• the outcome of pending or future litigation;

• our ability to comply with federal and state regulations, including those related to environmental matters, the sale of alcohol, cigarettes and fresh
foods, and employment laws and health benefits;

• the outcome of CST’s exploration of strategic alternatives; and

• CST’s business strategy and operations and CST’s conflicts of interest with us.

You should consider the areas of risk described above, as well as those set forth in the section entitled “Risk Factors” included in our Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2015 and our Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2016, in connection with considering any forward-looking statements
that may be made by us and our businesses generally. We cannot assure you that projected results or events reflected in the forward-looking statements will be
achieved or will occur. The forward-looking statements included in this report are made as of the date of this report. We undertake no obligation to publicly
release any revisions to any forward-looking statements, to report events or to report the occurrence of unanticipated events after the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) is intended to help the reader understand our results of operations and financial condition.
This section is provided as a supplement to, and should be read in conjunction with, our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes to
these financial statements contained elsewhere in this report, and the MD&A section and the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes to
those financial statements in our Form 10-K. Our Form 10-K contains a discussion of other matters not included herein, such as disclosures regarding critical
accounting policies and estimates and contractual obligations.

MD&A is organized as follows:

• Significant Factors Affecting Our Profitability—This section describes the significant impact on our results of operations caused by crude oil
commodity price volatility, seasonality and acquisition and financing activities.

• Results of Operations—This section provides an analysis of our results of operations, including the results of operations of our business
segments, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, an outlook for our business and non-GAAP financial measures.

• Liquidity and Capital Resources—This section provides a discussion of our financial condition and cash flows. It also includes a discussion of
our debt, capital requirements and other matters impacting our liquidity and capital resources.

• New Accounting Policies—This section describes new accounting pronouncements that we have already adopted, those that we are required to
adopt in the future, and those that became applicable in the current year as a result of new circumstances.

• Critical Accounting Policies Involving Critical Accounting Estimates—This section describes the accounting policies and estimates that we
consider most important for our business and that require significant judgment.

Significant Factors Affecting our Profitability

The Significance of Crude Oil and Wholesale Motor Fuel Prices on Our Revenues, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

Wholesale segment

The prices paid to our motor fuel suppliers for wholesale motor fuel are highly correlated to the price of crude oil. The crude oil commodity markets are
highly volatile, and the market prices of crude oil, and, correspondingly, the market prices of wholesale motor fuel, experience significant and rapid
fluctuations. We receive a fixed mark-up per gallon on approximately 87% of gallons sold to our customers. The remaining gallons are primarily DTW priced
contracts with our customers. These contracts provide for variable, market based pricing that results in motor fuel gross profit effects similar to retail motor
fuel gross profits (as crude oil prices decline, motor fuel gross profit generally increases, as discussed below). The increase in DTW gross profit results from
the acquisition cost of wholesale motor fuel declining at a faster rate as compared to the rate retail motor fuel prices decline. Alternatively, our DTW motor
fuel gross profit declines when the cost of wholesale motor fuel increases at a faster rate as compared to the rate retail motor fuel prices increase.

Regarding our supplier relationships, a majority of our total gallons purchased are subject to discounts for prompt payment and other rebates and incentives.
Prompt payment discounts are based on a percentage of the purchase price of motor fuel. As such, the dollar value of these discounts increase and decrease
corresponding with motor fuel prices. Therefore, in periods of lower wholesale motor fuel prices, our gross profit is negatively affected and, in periods of
higher wholesale motor fuel prices, our gross profit is positively affected (as it relates to these discounts).  Based on our current volumes, we estimate a $10
per barrel change in the price of crude oil would impact our overall annual wholesale motor fuel gross profit by approximately $2.1 million related to these
payment discounts.

Retail segment

The prices we pay for wholesale motor fuel are closely correlated to the price of crude oil. The crude oil commodity markets are highly volatile, and the
market prices of crude oil and wholesale motor fuel experience significant and rapid fluctuations. We attempt to pass along wholesale motor fuel price
changes to our retail customers through “at the pump” retail price changes; however, market conditions do not always allow us to do so immediately. The
timing of any related increase or decrease in “at the pump” retail prices is affected by competitive conditions in each geographic market in which we operate.
As such, the prices we charge our customers for motor fuel and the gross profit we receive on our motor fuel sales can increase or decrease significantly
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and rapidly over short periods of time.

Changes in our average motor fuel selling price per gallon and gross margin for the periods ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are directly related to the changes
in crude oil and wholesale motor fuel prices over the same period. Variations in our reported revenues and cost of sales are, therefore, primarily related to the
price of crude oil and wholesale motor fuel prices and generally not as a result of changes in motor fuel sales volumes, unless otherwise indicated and
discussed below.

We typically experience lower retail motor fuel gross profits in periods when the wholesale cost of motor fuel increases, and higher retail motor fuel gross
profits in periods when the wholesale cost of motor fuel declines rapidly.

Seasonality Effects on Volumes

Our business is subject to substantial seasonality due to our wholesale and retail sites being located in certain geographic areas that are affected by seasonal
weather and temperature trends and associated changes in retail customer activity during different seasons. Historically, sales volumes have been highest in
the second and third quarters (during the summer months) and lowest during the winter months in the first and fourth quarters.

Impact of Inflation

Inflation affects our financial performance by increasing certain of our operating expenses and cost of goods sold. Operating expenses include labor costs,
leases, and general and administrative expenses. While our Wholesale segment benefits from higher terms discount as a result of higher fuel costs, inflation
could negatively impact our Retail segment as a result of higher fuel and merchandise costs. Although we have historically been able to pass on increased
costs through price increases, there can be no assurance that we will be able to do so in the future.

Acquisition and Financing Activity

Our results of operations and financial condition are also impacted by our acquisition and financing activities as summarized below.

2016

• On July 15, 2016, we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire certain assets of State Oil Company located in the greater Chicago market for
approximately $45 million. The acquisition is subject to customary conditions to closing and is expected to close in the third quarter of 2016. See
Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

• On July 7, 2016, we announced that CST provided a refund payment to the purchase price paid by us for our 17.5% interest in CST Fuel Supply as a
result of the sale by CST of 79 retail sites in California and Wyoming to 7-Eleven, to which CST Fuel Supply will no longer supply motor fuel. The
purpose of the refund payment was to make CrossAmerica whole for the decrease in the value of its interest in CST Fuel Supply arising from sales
volume decreases. The total refund payment received by the Partnership, as approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and by
the executive committee of the board of directors of CST, was approximately $18.2 million. See Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information.

• On March 29, 2016, CrossAmerica closed on the acquisition of franchise Holiday Stationstores and company-operated liquor stores from S/S/G
Corporation for approximately $52.4 million, including working capital. See Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
for additional information.

• On February 5, 2016, CrossAmerica purchased independent dealer and subwholesaler contracts from CST for $2.9 million. See Notes 2 and 9 of the
Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

2015

• In July 2015, we closed on the purchase of a 12.5% limited partner equity interest in CST Fuel Supply for aggregate consideration of 3.3 million
common units and cash in the amount of $17.5 million, with an aggregate consideration of $110.9 million on the date of closing.

• In July 2015, we closed on the purchase of convenience stores from One Stop and associated fee properties for $44.6 million.
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• In July 2015, we completed the purchase of real property at 29 NTIs from CST in exchange for an aggregate consideration of approximately 0.3
million common units and cash in the amount of $124.4 million, with an aggregate consideration of $134.0 million on the date of closing.

• In June 2015, we closed on the sale of 4.6 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $138.5 million. In July 2015, we closed on the
sale of an additional 0.2 million common units for net proceeds of approximately $6.4 million in accordance with the underwriters’ option to
purchase additional common units associated with the June offering. We used the proceeds to reduce indebtedness outstanding under our credit
facility.

• In February 2015, we closed on the purchase of all of the outstanding capital stock of Erickson and certain related assets for an aggregate purchase
price of $83.8 million, including working capital. See Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

• In January 2015, in connection with the joint acquisition by CST and CrossAmerica of 22 convenience stores from Landmark Industries, we
acquired the real property of the 22 fee sites for $41.2 million. In addition, we distribute wholesale motor fuel to these sites.

• In January 2015, we closed on the purchase of a 5% limited partner equity interest in CST Fuel Supply for aggregate consideration of 1.5 million
common units valued at $60.4 million at closing. See Notes 1 and 9 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional
information.
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Results of Operations

Consolidated Income Statement Analysis

Below is an analysis of our consolidated statements of operations and provides the primary reasons for significant increases and decreases in the various
income statement line items from period to period. Our consolidated statements of operations are as follows (in thousands):

 Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Operating revenues $ 512,644  $ 650,136  $ 880,384  $ 1,130,593
Cost of sales 472,129  608,965  802,679  1,051,695

Gross profit 40,515  41,171  77,705  78,898

        

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity 4,245  1,177  8,296  2,275
Operating expenses:        

Operating expenses 16,119  20,071  31,530  37,411

General and administrative expenses 4,921  7,614  11,926  18,060

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense 14,262  11,411  27,162  22,913

Total operating expenses 35,302  39,096  70,618  78,384

Gain (loss) on sales of assets, net (102)  422  (106)  452

Operating income 9,356  3,674  15,277  3,241

Other income, net 316  190  434  249

Interest expense (5,704)  (4,743)  (10,769)  (9,021)

Income (loss) before income taxes 3,968  (879)  4,942  (5,531)

Income tax expense (benefit) 338  (907)  (457)  (2,588)

Consolidated net income (loss) 3,630  28  5,399  (2,943)

Net income (loss) attributable to noncontrolling interests 4  (2)  6  (7)
Net income (loss) attributable to CrossAmerica limited
   partners 3,626  30  5,393  (2,936)
Distributions to CST as holder of the incentive
   distribution rights (820)  (195)  (1,579)  (365)
Net income (loss) available to CrossAmerica limited
   partners $ 2,806  $ (165)  $ 3,814  $ (3,301)
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2015

Consolidated Results

Operating revenues declined $137.5 million, or 21%, while gross profit declined $0.7 million, or 2%.

Operating revenues

Significant items impacting these results prior to the elimination of intercompany revenues were:

• A $114.7 million, or 20%, decline in our Wholesale segment revenues primarily attributable to:

◦ A $99.0 million decline attributable to a decrease in the wholesale price of our motor fuel. The average daily spot price of West Texas
Intermediate crude oil decreased 21% to $45.46 per barrel for 2016. The wholesale price of motor fuel is highly correlated to the price of
crude oil.

◦ A $21.7 million decrease as a result of the divestiture of low margin wholesale fuel supply contracts and other assets acquired in the PMI
acquisition (see associated reduction in operating expenses within the wholesale segment).

◦ Partially offsetting this decline was an increase of $6.0 million primarily related to rental income associated with the acquisition from CST
of NTI convenience stores in July 2015 as well as converting company operated retail sites to the dealer customer group.

• A $64.8 million, or 34%, decline in our Retail segment revenues primarily attributable to:

◦ A decline of $13.1 million primarily attributable to a decrease in the retail price of our motor fuel driven by a decline in wholesale motor
fuel prices as noted above.

◦ A decrease of $42.6 million from a 29% decrease in motor fuel volumes sold related to the conversion of company-operated retail sites to
the dealer customer group during 2015 and 2016.

◦ A $9.1 million decrease in our merchandise revenues attributable to the conversion of company-operated retail sites to the dealer customer
group during 2015 and 2016.

Intersegment revenues

We present the results of operations of our segments consistently with how our management views the business. Therefore, our segments are presented before
intersegment eliminations (which consists of motor fuel sold by our Wholesale segment to our Retail segment). As a result, in order to reconcile to our
consolidated change in operating revenues, a discussion of the change in intersegment revenues is included in our consolidated MD&A discussion.

• Our intersegment revenues decreased $41.9 million, primarily attributable to the conversion of company-operated retail sites to the dealer customer
group during 2015 and 2016.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales declined $136.8 million, primarily from the decline in wholesale gasoline prices. See “Results of Operations—Segment Results” for additional
gross profit analyses.

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity

See “Results of Operations—Segment Results—Wholesale” for discussion.

Operating expenses

See “Results of Operations—Segment Results” for additional operating expenses analyses.
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General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses declined $2.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016, compared to the prior year, primarily attributable to the
integration of prior year acquisitions resulting in the elimination and reduction in duplicative administration costs.

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense increased $2.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 compared to the prior year, primarily
driven by our 2015 and 2016 acquisitions. In addition, we recorded $0.5 million of impairments of certain trademarks associated with retail sites that were
converted to the dealer customer group.

Interest expense

Interest expense increased $1.0 million due to additional borrowings during 2015 and 2016 to fund acquisitions.

Income tax expense/benefit

We recorded income tax expense of $0.3 million and a benefit of $0.9 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The increase
in the provision was due primarily to an increase in income at CrossAmerica’s corporate subsidiaries. In addition, we recorded a reduction in the valuation
allowance of $0.4 million during the three months ended June 30, 2015.
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Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2015

Consolidated Results

Operating revenues declined $250.2 million, or 22%, while gross profit declined $1.2 million, or 2%.

Operating revenues

Significant items impacting these results prior to the elimination of intercompany revenues were:

• A $216.0 million, or 22%, decline in our Wholesale segment revenues primarily attributable to:

◦ A $210.3 million decline attributable to a decrease in the wholesale price of our motor fuel. The average daily spot price of West Texas
Intermediate crude oil decreased 26% to $39.55 per barrel during the first six months 2016, compared to $48.49 the same period of the prior
year. The wholesale price of motor fuel is highly correlated to the price of crude oil.

◦ A $16.5 million decrease as a result of the divestiture of low margin wholesale fuel supply contracts and other assets acquired in the PMI
acquisition (see associated reduction in operating expense within the wholesale segment).

◦ Partially offsetting this decline was a $10.8 million increase primarily related to rental income associated with the acquisition from CST of
NTI convenience stores in July 2015 as well as converting company-operated retail sites to the dealer customer group.

• A $95.1 million, or 29%, decline in our Retail segment revenues primarily attributable to:

◦ A decline of $32.6 million primarily attributable to a decrease in the retail price of our motor fuel driven by a decline in wholesale motor
fuel prices as noted above.

◦ A decrease of $55.2 million from a 22% decrease in motor fuel volumes sold related to the conversion of company-operated retail sites to
dealer-operated sites during 2015 and 2016.

◦ A $7.3 million decrease in our merchandise revenues attributable to the conversion of company-operated retail sites to the dealer customer
group during 2015 and 2016.

Intersegment revenues

We present the results of operations of our segments consistently with how our management views the business. Therefore, our segments are presented before
intersegment eliminations (which consists of motor fuel sold by our Wholesale segment to our Retail segment). As a result, in order to reconcile to our
consolidated change in operating revenues, a discussion of the change in intersegment revenues is included in our consolidated MD&A discussion.

• Our intersegment revenues decreased $60.9 million, primarily attributable to the conversion of PMI, Erickson and One Stop company-operated sites
to dealer-operated sites during 2015 and 2016.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales declined $249.0 million, primarily from the decline in wholesale gasoline prices. See “Results of Operations—Segment Results” for additional
gross profit analyses.

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity

See “Results of Operations—Segment Results—Wholesale” for discussion.

Operating expenses

See “Results of Operations—Segment Results” for additional operating expenses analyses.
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General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses declined $6.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016, compared to the prior year, primarily attributable to a $4.1
million decrease related to the integration of prior year acquisitions and a $1.6 million decrease in equity-based compensation as a result of fewer units
outstanding in 2016 as compared to 2015 due to the non-substantive vesting of the former CEO’s awards, less stock-based compensation charged to us by
CST.

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense

Depreciation, amortization and accretion expense increased $4.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 compared to the prior year, primarily driven
by our 2015 and 2016 acquisitions. In addition, we recorded $0.5 million of impairments of certain trademarks associated with retail sites that were converted
to the dealer customer group.

Interest expense

Interest expense increased $1.7 million due to additional borrowings during 2015 and 2016 to fund acquisitions.

Income tax benefit

The income tax benefit decreased from $2.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2015 to $0.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016. The
decrease in the benefit was due primarily to a decrease in the loss at CrossAmerica’s corporate subsidiaries. In addition, we recorded a reduction in the
valuation allowance of $0.4 million during the six months ended June 30, 2015.

35



Segment Results

We present the results of operations of our segments consistent with how our management views the business. Therefore, our segments are presented before
intersegment eliminations (which consists of motor fuel sold by our Wholesale segment to our Retail segment). These comparisons are not necessarily
indicative of future results.

Wholesale

The following table highlights the results of operations and certain operating metrics of our Wholesale segment. The narrative following these tables provides
an analysis of the results of operations of that segment (thousands of dollars, except for the number of distribution sites and per gallon amounts):

 
Three Months Ended June

30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

 2016  2015  2016  2015

Gross profit:        
Motor fuel–third party $ 7,512  $ 6,521  $ 13,126  $ 13,669
Motor fuel–intersegment and related party 6,807  8,076  12,918  14,060

Motor fuel gross profit 14,319  14,597  26,044  27,729
Rent and other(a) 14,770  9,476  28,899  19,978

Total gross profit 29,089  24,073  54,943  47,707
        

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity(b) 4,245  1,177  8,296  2,275
Operating expenses(a) (7,434)  (7,568)  (13,298)  (14,698)

Adjusted EBITDA(c) $ 25,900  $ 17,682  $ 49,941  $ 35,284

        

Motor fuel distribution sites (end of period):(d)        
Motor fuel–third party        

Independent dealers(e) 384  379  384  379
Lessee dealers(f) 361  235  361  235

Total motor fuel distribution–third party sites 745  614  745  614

Motor fuel–intersegment and related party        
Affiliated dealers (related party) 184  199  184  199
CST (related party) 43  43  43  43
Commission agents (Retail segment) 65  70  65  70
Company-operated retail convenience stores (Retail segment)
(g) 77  124  77  124

Total motor fuel distribution–intersegment and
   related party sites 369  436  369  436

Motor fuel distribution sites (average during the period):     
Motor fuel-third party distribution 739  609  711  612
Motor fuel-intersegment and related party
   distribution 380  445  393  431
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Three Months Ended June

30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015  2016  2015

         

Total volume of gallons distributed (in thousands)  265,910  277,126  502,072  510,938
         

Motor fuel gallons distributed per site per day:(h)         
Motor fuel–third party         

Total weighted average motor fuel distributed–
   third party  2,287  2,565  2,201  2,437
Independent dealers  2,441  2,964  2,385  2,784
Lessee dealers  2,118  1,883  1,985  1,805

         

Motor fuel–intersegment and related party         
Total weighted average motor fuel distributed–
   intersegment and related party  3,051  3,094  2,857  2,861
Affiliated dealers (related party)  2,591  2,611  2,457  2,460
CST (related party)  5,250  5,239  5,016  4,999
Commission agents (Retail segment)  3,167  2,988  2,968  2,861
Company-operated retail convenience stores
   (Retail segment)  2,858  3,173  2,598  2,784

          
Wholesale margin per gallon–total system  $ 0.054  $ 0.053  $ 0.052  $ 0.054
Wholesale margin per gallon–third party sites(i)  $ 0.047  $ 0.043  $ 0.044  $ 0.048
Wholesale margin per gallon–intersegment and
   related party  $ 0.065  $ 0.064  $ 0.063  $ 0.063

(a) Prior to 2016, CrossAmerica netted lease executory costs such as real estate taxes, maintenance, and utilities that CrossAmerica paid and re-billed to customers on its
statement of operations. During the first quarter of 2016, CrossAmerica began accounting for such amounts as rent income and operating expenses and reflected this
change in presentation retrospectively. This change resulted in a $2.5 million and $5.1 million increase in rent and other income and operating expenses for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2015.

(b) Represents income from our equity interest in CST Fuel Supply.    
(c) Please see the reconciliation of our segment’s Adjusted EBITDA to consolidated net income under the heading “Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures.
(d) In addition, as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, we distributed motor fuel to 15 and 14 sub-wholesalers, respectively, who distribute to additional sites.
(e) The increase in the independent dealer site count was primarily attributable to 21 independent dealer contracts assigned to us by CST and nine wholesale fuel supply

contracts acquired in the One Stop acquisition, partially offset by 25 terminated motor fuel supply contracts that were not renewed.
(f) The increase in the lessee dealer site count was primarily attributable to converting 122 company-operated convenience stores in our Retail segment to the lessee dealer

customer group in our Wholesale segment between June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016.
(g) The decrease in the company-operated retail site count was primarily attributable to 122 company-operated convenience stores being converted to dealer sites between

June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016, partially offset by the 41 sites acquired in the July 2015 One Stop acquisition and the 31 sites acquired in the March 2016 Holiday
acquisition.

(h) Does not include the motor fuel gallons distributed to sub-wholesalers.
(i) Includes the wholesale gross margin for motor fuel distributed to sub-wholesalers.
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2015

The results were driven by:

Motor Fuel Gross profit

• A decline of $0.3 million as a result of fewer motor fuel gallons sold associated with terminating low margin wholesale fuel supply contracts and
disposing other assets acquired in the PMI acquisition.

Rent and other margin

• Rent and other margin increased $5.3 million primarily as a result of our acquisition from CST of NTI convenience stores in July 2015, as well as
converting company-operated convenience stores to lessee dealer sites.

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity

• Income from our investment in CST Fuel Supply increased $3.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2016 as compared to the same period in
the prior year, as a result of the additional 12.5% equity interest acquired in July 2015.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2015

The results were driven by:

Motor Fuel Gross profit

• The $1.7 million decrease in motor fuel gross profit was due to a $1.0 million decline in our payment discounts and incentives due to the decline in
motor fuel prices as a result of the decrease in crude oil and a $0.7 million decline in motor fuel gallons sold due to the termination of wholesale fuel
supply contracts and disposing other assets discussed above. See “The Significance of Crude Oil and Wholesale Motor Fuel Prices on Our Revenues,
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit.”

Rent and other margin

• Rent and other margin increased $8.9 million primarily as a result of our acquisition from CST of NTI convenience stores in July 2015, as well as
converting company-operated convenience stores to lessee dealer sites.

Income from CST Fuel Supply equity

• Income from our investment in CST Fuel Supply increased $6.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2016 as compared to the same period in
the prior year, as a result of the additional 12.5% equity interest acquired in July 2015.

Operating expenses

• Operating expenses decreased $1.4 million primarily as a result of the integration of prior year acquisitions, partially offset by an increase in
management fees allocated by CST.
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Retail

The following table highlights the results of operations and certain operating metrics of our Retail segment. The narrative following these tables provides an
analysis of the results of operations of that segment (thousands of dollars, except for the number of convenience stores and per gallon amounts):

  Three Months Ended June 30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015  2016  2015
Gross profit:         

Motor fuel  $ 2,361  $ 4,629  $ 4,890  $ 9,346

Merchandise and services  8,033  11,397  15,748  19,859

Other  1,019  1,072  1,992  2,148

Total gross profit  11,413  17,098  22,630  31,353

Operating expenses  (8,685)  (12,503)  (18,232)  (22,713)

Inventory fair value adjustments(a)  —  —  91  706

Adjusted EBITDA(b)  $ 2,728  $ 4,595  $ 4,489  $ 9,346

         
Retail sites (end of period):         
Commission agents  65  70  65  70

Company-operated convenience stores(c)  80  124  80  124

Total system sites at the end of the period  145  194  145  194

Total system operating statistics:         
Average retail sites during the period(c)  150  206  162  198
Motor fuel sales (gallons per site per day)  2,984  3,055  2,751  2,892
Motor fuel gross profit per gallon, net of credit card
   fees and commissions  $ 0.058  $ 0.081  $ 0.060  $ 0.090
Commission agents statistics:         
Average retail sites during the period  65  71  66  72
Motor fuel sales (gallons per site per day)  3,154  3,001  2,959  2,899
Motor fuel gross profit per gallon, net of credit card
   fees and commissions  $ 0.019  $ 0.021  $ 0.018  $ 0.030
Company-operated convenience store retail site
   statistics:         
Average retail sites during the period(c)  85  135  96  126
Motor fuel sales (gallons per site per day)  2,853  3,083  2,608  2,888
Motor fuel gross profit per gallon, net of credit card
   fees  $ 0.091  $ 0.112  $ 0.094  $ 0.125
Merchandise and services sales (per site per day)(d)  $ 4,166  $ 3,534  $ 3,602  $ 3,180
Merchandise and services gross profit percentage,
   net of credit card fees  24.1%  26.9%  24.7%  28.0%

(a) The inventory fair value adjustments recorded during the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 represent the write-offs of the step-up in value ascribed to inventory
in our Holiday and Erickson acquisitions, respectively.

(b) Please see the reconciliation of our segment’s Adjusted EBITDA to consolidated net income under the heading “Results of Operations—Non-GAAP Financial Measures”
below.

(c) The decrease in retail sites relates to the conversion of 122 company-operated sites to lessee dealer since June 30, 2015, partially offset by the 42 One Stop and 34 Holiday
sites acquired since June 30, 2015.

(d) Includes the results from car wash sales and commissions from lottery, money orders, air/water/vacuum services and ATM fees.
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Three Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Three Months Ended June 30, 2015

Gross profit declined $5.7 million, while operating expenses declined $3.8 million.

These results were impacted by:

Gross profit

• Our motor fuel gross profit decreased $2.3 million attributable to a 29% decrease in volume driven by the conversion of sites acquired in prior
acquisitions to the lessee dealer customer group during 2015 and 2016 and a 13% decrease in price.

• Our merchandise gross profit declined $3.4 million as a result of the conversion of company-operated sites to lessee dealer sites in 2015 and 2016.
The decline in our merchandise gross profit percentage was the result of low gross margin items, such as cigarettes, comprising a higher percentage
of our merchandise sales as a result of our 2015 acquisitions and conversion of company-operated sites.

Operating expenses

• A $3.8 million decline in operating expenses attributable to the conversion of company-operated sites to the dealer customer group, partially offset
by the Holiday acquisition.

Six Months Ended June 30, 2016 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2015

Gross profit declined $8.7 million, while operating expenses declined $4.5 million.

These results were impacted by:

Gross profit

• Our motor fuel gross profit decreased $4.5 million attributable to a 22% decrease in volume driven by the conversion of sites acquired in prior
acquisitions to the dealer customer group during 2015 and 2016 and a 16% decrease in price.

• Our merchandise gross profit declined $4.1 million as a result of the conversion of company-operated sites to lessee dealer sites in 2015 and 2016.
The decline in our merchandise gross profit percentage was the result of low gross margin items, such as cigarettes, comprising a higher percentage
of our merchandise sales as a result of the change in product mix of our stores following our 2015 acquisitions and conversion of company-operated
sites to the dealer customer group.

Operating expenses

• A $4.5 million decline in operating expenses attributable to the conversion of company-operated sites to the dealer customer group, partially offset
by the impact of the Erickson, One Stop and Holiday acquisitions.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

Our principal liquidity requirements are to finance our operations, fund acquisitions, service our debt and pay distributions to our unitholders and to CST as
holder of our IDRs. We expect our ongoing sources of liquidity to include cash generated by our operations and borrowings under the revolving credit facility
and, if available to us on acceptable terms, issuances of equity and debt securities. CrossAmerica regularly evaluates alternate sources of capital, including
sale-leaseback financing of real property with third parties, to support our liquidity requirements. 

Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and other capital requirements, including capital expenditures, acquisitions, and partnership distributions will
depend on our future operating performance, which, in turn, will be subject to general economic, financial, business, competitive, legislative, regulatory and
other conditions, many of which are beyond our control. As a normal part of our business, depending on market conditions, we will, from time to time,
consider opportunities to repay, redeem, repurchase or refinance our indebtedness. Changes in our operating plans, lower than anticipated sales, increased
expenses, acquisitions or other events may cause us to seek additional debt or equity financing in future periods.

We believe that we will have sufficient cash flow from operations, borrowing capacity under the revolving credit facility and access to capital markets and
alternate sources of funding to meet our financial commitments, debt service obligations, contingencies, anticipated capital expenditures, and partnership
distributions. However, we are subject to business and operational risks that could adversely affect our cash flow. A material decrease in our cash flows would
likely produce an adverse effect on our borrowing capacity as well as our ability to issue additional equity and/or debt securities.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes cash flow activity (in thousands):

  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities  $ 37,041  $ 16,461

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities  $ (60,484)  $ (126,171)

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities  $ 25,506  $ 99,130

Operating Activities

The increase in net cash provided by operating activities was driven primarily as a result of our acquisitions. See Note 17 of the Condensed Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for supplemental cash flow information.

Investing Activities

During 2016, we spent $52.4 million on the Holiday acquisition and $2.9 million for the contracts assigned by CST to us, and in 2015, we spent $125.1
million on the Landmark and Erickson acquisitions, which were the primary components of net cash used in investing activities.

Financing Activities

Our net borrowings under our credit facility totaled $71.6 million during the six months ended June 30, 2016, which were primarily used to fund the Holiday
acquisition. Also, we paid $41.2 million in total distributions and repurchased $3.3 million of common units during the six months ended June 30, 2016.
During 2015, we borrowed $132.8 million primarily to finance the Landmark and Erickson acquisitions. Additionally, we issued 4.6 million common units in
exchange for net cash proceeds of $138.5 million and used the net proceeds of this offering to repay indebtedness outstanding under our revolving credit
facility.

Subsequent Event—Refund payment related to CST sale of California and Wyoming assets

On July 7, 2016, we announced that CST provided a refund payment to the purchase price paid by the Partnership for our 17.5% interest in CST Fuel Supply.
The total refund payment received by the Partnership was approximately $18.2 million. See Note 9 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional information.
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Distributions

Distribution activity for 2016 was as follows:

Quarter Ended  Record Date  Payment Date  
Cash Distribution (per

unit)  
Cash Distribution (in

thousands)

December 31, 2015  February 12, 2016  February 24, 2016  $ 0.5925  $ 19,618
March 31, 2016  May 19, 2016  May 31, 2016  $ 0.5975  $ 19,910

The Board approved a quarterly distribution of $0.6025 per unit attributable to the second quarter of 2016. The distribution is payable on August 15, 2016 to
all unitholders of record on August 8, 2016.

Subordination Period

In accordance with the terms of the Partnership Agreement, on February 25, 2016, the first business day after the payment of the previously announced
distribution of $0.5925 per unit for the fourth quarter of 2015, the subordination period under the Partnership Agreement ended. At that time, each of the
7,525,000 outstanding subordinated units converted into one common unit and now participate in distributions pro rata with other common units.

IDRs

During 2016, we distributed $1.6 million to CST with respect to the IDRs. The distributions declared since March 2014 exceed the relevant threshold for
distributions to the holders of the IDRs and IDRs have participated in distributions since that date.

Debt

As of June 30, 2016, our consolidated debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

$550 million revolving credit facility  $ 430,000

Note payable  850

Lease financing obligations  58,454
Total debt and lease financing obligations  489,304

Current portion  2,785
Noncurrent portion  486,519

Deferred financing fees  (4,669)

Total  $ 481,850

Our revolving credit facility is secured by substantially all of the assets of CrossAmerica and its subsidiaries. Our borrowings under the revolving credit
facility had an interest rate of 3.46% (LIBOR plus 3.00%) as of June 30, 2016. Letters of credit outstanding at June 30, 2016 totaled $14.9 million. As of
August 3, 2016, after taking into consideration debt covenant constraints, approximately $101.4 million was available for future borrowings. In connection
with future acquisitions, the revolving credit facility requires, among other things, that we have, after giving effect to such acquisition, at least, in the
aggregate, $20 million of borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility and unrestricted cash on the balance sheet on the date of such acquisition.
We are required to maintain a total leverage ratio (as defined in the revolving credit facility) for the most recently completed four fiscal quarters of less than
or equal to 5.00 to 1.00 and a consolidated interest coverage ratio (as defined in the revolving credit facility) of greater than or equal to 2.75 to 1.00. As of
June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica was in compliance with these financial covenant ratios. The computation of CrossAmerica’s total leverage ratio allows for a pro
forma application of the EBITDA (as defined in the revolving credit facility) of acquired entities and was 4.29x as of June 30, 2016. The total leverage ratio
covenant is 5.00 to 1.00 for the two quarters following a material acquisition (as defined in the revolving credit facility). As such, the total leverage ratio steps
down to 4.50 to 1.00 on December 31, 2016 assuming there are no material acquisitions for the remainder of 2016.
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Renegotiation of Rocky Top Purchase Obligation

In connection with the Rocky Top acquisition that we completed in September 2013, we entered into a deferred seller financing arrangement, which obligated
CrossAmerica to purchase certain sites in approximately equal parts over a 5-year period for an average $5.2 million per year beginning in 2016 at an
approximate 7.7% capitalization rate. In June 2016, we renegotiated the terms with the sellers, eliminating the deferred seller financing obligation and
agreeing to terms of a new lease of the assets for an initial term of 15 years and 8 months with four renewal options of five years each. Under the triple net
lease, annual rent is initially $1.8 million based on a 6.5% capitalization rate and increases 1.5% per year. However, because of the continuing involvement
CrossAmerica has with the sites through the lease and sublease of the properties, CrossAmerica is required to continue to carry the liability on its balance
sheet at its current fair value, estimated to be its carrying value. CrossAmerica reclassified the liability from debt and capital lease obligations to accrued
expenses and other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities on the balance sheet.

Capital Expenditures

We make investments to expand, upgrade and enhance existing assets. We categorize our capital requirements as either sustaining capital expenditures,
growth capital expenditures or acquisition capital expenditures. Sustaining capital expenditures are those capital expenditures required to maintain our long-
term operating income or operating capacity. Acquisition and growth capital expenditures are those capital expenditures that we expect will increase our
operating income or operating capacity over the long term. We have the ability to fund our capital expenditures by additional borrowings under our revolving
credit facility or, if available to us on acceptable terms, issuing additional equity, debt securities or other options, such as the sale of assets. With the
significant decline in energy prices since 2014, access to the capital markets has tightened for the energy and MLP industries as a whole, which has impacted
CrossAmerica’s cost of capital and its ability to raise equity and debt financing at favorable terms. Our ability to access the capital markets may have an
impact on our ability to fund acquisitions. We may not be able to complete any offering of securities or other options on terms acceptable to us, if at all.

The following table outlines our consolidated capital expenditures and acquisitions for the six months ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015

Sustaining capital  $ 329  $ 827
Growth  5,195  4,532
Acquisitions  55,250  123,137

Total consolidated capital expenditures and acquisitions  $ 60,774  $ 128,496

Other Matters Impacting Liquidity and Capital Resources

Concentration of Customers

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica distributed 17% of its total wholesale distribution volumes to DMS and received 30% of its
rent income from DMS. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica distributed 8% of its total wholesale distribution volumes to CST
and received 22% of its rent income from CST. For the three months ended June 30, 2016, CrossAmerica received 10% of its rent income from a third-party
dealer that operates many of the sites acquired through the PMI and One Stop acquisitions.

CrossAmerica Common Unit Purchases by CST

On September 21, 2015, CST announced that the independent executive committee of its board of directors approved a unit purchase program under Rule
10b-18 of the Exchange Act, authorizing CST to purchase up to an aggregate of $50 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in
CrossAmerica. The unit purchase program does not have a fixed expiration date and may be modified, suspended or terminated at any time at CST’s
discretion.

CST made no purchases under the unit purchase program during the six months ended June 30, 2016. Through June 30, 2016, CST had purchased $19.8
million, or 804,667 common units, at an average price of $24.64 per common unit, which units cannot be transferred absent registration with the SEC or an
available exemption from the SEC’s registration requirements.
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Common Unit Repurchase Program

In November 2015, the Board approved a common unit repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act authorizing CrossAmerica to repurchase
up to an aggregate of $25 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. Under the program, CrossAmerica may make
purchases in the open market in accordance with Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a trading plan under
Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act or otherwise. Any purchases will be funded from available cash on hand. The common unit repurchase program does not
require CrossAmerica to acquire any specific number of common units and may be suspended or terminated by CrossAmerica at any time without prior
notice. The purchases will not be made from any officer, director or control person of CrossAmerica or CST. The following table shows the purchases during
the six months ended June 30, 2016:

Period  
Total Number of
Units Purchased  

Average Price Paid
per Unit  

Total Cost of Units
Purchased  

Amount Remaining
under the Program

January 1 - March 31, 2016  112,492  $ 24.47  $ 2,752,240  $ 18,644,689
April 1 - June 30, 2016  20,971  $ 23.86  $ 500,413  $ 18,144,276

January 1 - June 30, 2016  133,463  $ 24.37  $ 3,252,653  $ 18,144,276

Through August 3, 2016, CrossAmerica had repurchased 287,621 units for $6.9 million under the plan.

Acquisition of franchise Holiday Stationstores

On March 29, 2016, we closed on the acquisition of 31 franchise Holiday Stationstores and 3 company-operated liquor stores from S/S/G Corporation for
approximately $52.4 million. Of the 34 company-operated stores, 31 are located in Wisconsin and 3 are located in Minnesota. The acquisition was funded by
borrowings under our credit facility.

See Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Finalization of Purchase Accounting associated with the Erickson Acquisition

CrossAmerica recorded a $1.1 million receivable for a working capital settlement as tentatively agreed to with the sellers.

See Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Purchase of Wholesale Fuel Supply Contracts from CST

In February 2016, CST sold 21 independent dealer contracts and 11 subwholesaler contracts to CrossAmerica for $2.9 million.

See Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Subsequent Event—Acquisition of State Oil

On July 15, 2016, we announced that we entered into a definitive agreement to acquire certain assets of Chicago-area fuel distributor State Oil Company. See
Note 2 of the Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.
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Outlook

As a result of our recent acquisitions, we expect our total fuel volume sold for the remainder of 2016 to be slightly higher compared to 2015 volumes after
adjusting for volume associated with assets divested during 2015. While the U.S. energy markets, including wholesale and retail motor fuel prices, are likely
to continue to be volatile in the coming year, we have seen modest increases in wholesale fuel margins in the second quarter as a result of increases in our
commodity prices and the resulting discounts we receive from our motor fuel suppliers.

We expect our rent income to increase in 2016 based on our expectation that we will continue to convert recently acquired company-operated sites to lessee
dealers. We will continue to evaluate acquisitions on an opportunistic basis. Additionally, we will pursue acquisition targets that fit into our strategy. Whether
we will be able to execute acquisitions will depend on market conditions, availability of suitable acquisition targets at attractive terms, which are expected to
be accretive to CrossAmerica’s unitholders, and our ability to finance such acquisitions on favorable terms.
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New Accounting Policies

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02—Leases (Topic 842). This standard modifies existing guidance for reporting organizations that enter into
leases to increase transparency by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing
arrangements. ASU 2016-02 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2018, and requires a modified
retrospective approach to adoption. Early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this new guidance in addition to the timing
of adoption.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09—Compensation–Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting. This standard is issued as part of a simplification initiative involving several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions,
including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities and classification on the statement of cash flows. ASU 2016-09
is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2016. The approach to adoption is dependent upon which
amendments are applicable. Early adoption is permitted. Management is currently evaluating the impact of this new guidance in addition to the timing of
adoption.

Certain other new financial accounting pronouncements have become effective for our financial statements but the adoption of these pronouncements is not
expected to materially impact our financial position or results of operations, nor will they require any additional disclosures.
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Critical Accounting Policies Involving Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

There have been no material changes to the critical accounting policies described in our Form 10-K.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We use the non-GAAP financial measures EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow in this report. EBITDA represents net income available
to CrossAmerica limited partners before deducting interest expense, income taxes and depreciation, amortization and accretion. Adjusted EBITDA represents
EBITDA as further adjusted to exclude equity funded expenses related to incentive compensation and the Amended Omnibus Agreement, gains or losses on
sales of assets, certain discrete acquisition related costs, such as legal and other professional fees and severance expenses associated with recently acquired
companies, and certain other discrete non-cash items, such as inventory fair value adjustments arising from purchase accounting. Distributable Cash Flow
represents Adjusted EBITDA less cash interest expense, sustaining capital expenditures and current income tax expense.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow are used as supplemental financial measures by management and by external users of our financial
statements, such as investors and lenders. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are used to assess our financial performance without regard to financing methods,
capital structure or income taxes and our ability to incur and service debt and to fund capital expenditures. In addition, Adjusted EBITDA is used to assess the
operating performance of our business on a consistent basis by excluding the impact of items which do not result directly from the wholesale distribution of
motor fuel, the leasing of real property, or the day to day operations of our retail convenience store activities. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable
Cash Flow are also used to assess our ability to generate cash sufficient to make distributions to our unitholders.

We believe the presentation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow provides useful information to investors in assessing our financial
condition and results of operations. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow should not be considered alternatives to net income or any
other measure of financial performance or liquidity presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow
have important limitations as analytical tools because they exclude some but not all items that affect net income. Additionally, because EBITDA, Adjusted
EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow may be defined differently by other companies in our industry, our definitions may not be comparable to similarly
titled measures of other companies, thereby diminishing their utility.
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 The following table presents reconciliations of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and Distributable Cash Flow to net income, the most directly comparable U.S.
GAAP financial measure, for each of the periods indicated (in thousands, except for per unit amounts):

  
Three Months Ended June

30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015  2016  2015

Net income available to CrossAmerica limited partners  $ 2,806  $ (165)  $ 3,814  $ (3,301)
Interest expense  5,704  4,743  10,769  9,021
Income tax expense (benefit)  338  (907)  (457)  (2,588)
Depreciation, amortization and accretion  14,262  11,411  27,162  22,913

EBITDA  23,110  15,082  41,288  26,045

Equity funded expenses related to incentive compensation and the
Amended Omnibus Agreement(a)

 3,343  3,250  6,625  6,192

(Gain) loss on sales of assets, net  102  (422)  106  (452)
Acquisition-related costs(b)  563  1,150  1,223  2,152
Inventory fair value adjustments  —  —  91  706

Adjusted EBITDA  27,118  19,060  49,333  34,643

Cash interest expense  (5,354)  (4,006)  (10,049)  (7,915)

Sustaining capital expenditures(c)   (198)  (307)  (329)  (827)

Current income tax expense  (365)  (428)  (465)  (1,487)

Distributable Cash Flow  $ 21,201  $ 14,319  $ 38,490  $ 24,414

         

Weighted average diluted common and subordinated units(d)
 33,292  25,155  33,244  24,880

         

Distributable Cash Flow per diluted limited partner unit  $ 0.6368  $ 0.5692  $ 1.1578  $ 0.9813

Distributions paid per limited partner unit(e)
 $ 0.5975  $ 0.5475  $ 1.1900  $ 1.0900

Distribution coverage  1.07x  1.04x  0.97x  0.90x

(a) As approved by the independent conflicts committee of the Board and the executive committee of CST and its board of directors, CrossAmerica and CST mutually agreed
to settle certain amounts due under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement in limited partnership units of CrossAmerica.

(b) Relates to certain discrete acquisition related costs, such as legal and other professional fees and severance expenses associated with recently acquired businesses.
(c) Under our Partnership Agreement, sustaining capital expenditures are capital expenditures made to maintain our long-term operating income or operating capacity.

Examples of sustaining capital expenditures are those made to maintain existing contract volumes, including payments to renew existing distribution contracts, or to
maintain our sites in leasable condition, such as parking lot or roof replacement/renovation, or to replace equipment required to operate our existing business.

(d) Includes 47,490 and 94,209 dilutive units that are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per unit for the three and six months ended June 30, 2015,
respectively, because to do so would be anti-dilutive.

(e) The Board approved a quarterly distribution of $0.6025 per unit attributable to the second quarter of 2016. The distribution is payable on August 15, 2016 to all
unitholders of record on August 8, 2016.
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The following table reconciles our segment Adjusted EBITDA to consolidated Adjusted EBITDA presented in the table above (in thousands):

  
Three Months Ended June

30,  Six Months Ended June 30,

  2016  2015  2016  2015

Adjusted EBITDA - Wholesale segment  $ 25,900  $ 17,682  $ 49,941  $ 35,284

Adjusted EBITDA - Retail segment  2,728  4,595  4,489  9,346

Adjusted EBITDA - Total segment  $ 28,628  $ 22,277  $ 54,430  $ 44,630
         

Reconciling items:         

Elimination of intersegment profit in ending inventory
balance  13  —  132  (162)

General and administrative expenses  (4,921)  (7,614)  (11,926)  (18,060)

Other income, net  316  190  434  249
Equity funded expenses related to incentive compensation and
the Amended Omnibus Agreement  3,343  3,250  6,625  6,192
Acquisition-related costs  563  1,150  1,223  2,152
Net (income) loss attributable to noncontrolling interests  (4)  2  (6)  7

Distributions to incentive distribution right holders  (820)  (195)  (1,579)  (365)

Consolidated Adjusted EBITDA  $ 27,118  $ 19,060  $ 49,333  $ 34,643

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market Risk

We purchase gasoline and diesel fuel from several suppliers at costs that are subject to market volatility. These purchases are generally made pursuant to
contracts or at market prices established with the supplier. We do not engage in hedging activities for these purchases due to our pricing structure which
allows us to generally pass on price changes to our customers and related parties.

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2016, we had $430.0 million outstanding on our revolving credit facility. Our outstanding borrowings bear interest at the London Interbank
Offered Rate plus a margin of 3.00%. These borrowings had an interest rate of 3.46%. A one percentage point change in our average rate would impact
annual interest expense by approximately $4.3 million.

Commodity Price Risk

We have not historically hedged or managed our price risk with respect to our commodity inventories (gasoline and diesel fuel), as the time period between
the purchases of our motor fuel inventory and the sales to our customers is very short.

Foreign Currency Risk

The operations of CrossAmerica are located in the U.S., and therefore are not subject to foreign currency risk.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this report, and has
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30, 2016.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as that term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act) that
occurred during the six months ended June 30, 2016, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We hereby incorporate by reference into this Item our disclosures made in Part I, Item 1 of this quarterly report included in Note 10 of the Condensed Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There were no material changes in risk factors for the company in the period covered by this report. See the risk factors disclosed in the section entitled “Risk
Factors” in our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and our Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2016.
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Item 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Management Fee Issuance

As discussed in Note 12 to Item 1 in Part I above, on March 31, May 9, and August 2, 2016, CrossAmerica issued 145,137, 83,218 and 101,087 common
units to a subsidiary of CST as partial payment for the amounts incurred for the fourth quarter of 2015, the first quarter of 2016 and the second quarter of
2016, respectively, under the terms of the Amended Omnibus Agreement. This issuance of the common units was made in reliance on Section 4(a)(2) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Common Unit Repurchase Program

In November 2015, the Board approved a common unit repurchase program under Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act authorizing CrossAmerica to repurchase
up to an aggregate of $25 million of the common units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership. Under the program, CrossAmerica may make
purchases in the open market in accordance with Rule 10b-18 of the Exchange Act, or in privately negotiated transactions, pursuant to a trading plan under
Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act or otherwise. Any purchases will be funded from available cash on hand. The common unit repurchase program does not
require CrossAmerica to acquire any specific number of common units and may be suspended or terminated by CrossAmerica at any time without prior
notice. The purchases will not be made from any officer, director or control person of CrossAmerica or CST. The following table shows the purchases during
the six months ended June 30, 2016:

Period  
Total Number of
Units Purchased  

Average Price Paid
per Unit  

Total Cost of Units
Purchased  

Amount Remaining
under the Program

January 1 - January 31, 2016  —  $ —  $ —  $ 21,396,929
February 1 - February 29, 2016  —  $ —  $ —  $ 21,396,929
March 1 - March 31, 2016  112,492  $ 24.47  $ 2,752,240  $ 18,644,689
April 1 - April 30, 2016  —  $ —  $ —  $ 18,644,689
May 1 - May 31, 2016  —  $ —  $ —  $ 18,644,689
June 1 - June 30, 2016  20,971  $ 23.86  $ 500,413  $ 18,144,276

January 1 - June 30, 2016  133,463  $ 24.37  $ 3,252,653  $ 18,144,276
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS.

Exhibit No. Description

31.1 * Certification of Principal Executive Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934

31.2 * Certification of Principal Financial Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC as required by Rule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934

32.1*† Certification of Principal Executive Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

32.2*† Certification of Principal Financial Officer of CrossAmerica GP LLC pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350

101.INS * XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF * XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith

† Not considered to be “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CROSSAMERICA PARTNERS LP

By: CROSSAMERICA GP LLC, its General Partner

By:    /s/ Clayton E. Killinger                
Clayton E. Killinger
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: August 4, 2016
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeremy Bergeron, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2016

 

/s/ Jeremy Bergeron
Jeremy Bergeron
President
[Principal Executive Officer]
CrossAmerica GP LLC
(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)



 Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Clayton E. Killinger, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures, and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: August 4, 2016

 
/s/ Clayton E. Killinger
Clayton E. Killinger
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the quarter ended June 30, 2016, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jeremy Bergeron, President of CrossAmerica GP LLC, the General Partner of
the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 that, to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Partnership.

Date: August 4, 2016

 

/s/ Jeremy Bergeron
Jeremy Bergeron
President
[Principal Executive Officer]
CrossAmerica GP LLC
(as General Partner of CrossAmerica Partners LP)

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of §18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1964, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



 Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of CrossAmerica Partners LP (the “Partnership”) for the quarter ended June 30, 2016, as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Clayton E. Killinger, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
CrossAmerica GP LLC, the General Partner of the Partnership, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002 that, to my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Partnership.

Date: August 4, 2016

 

/s/ Clayton E. Killinger
Clayton E. Killinger
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

This certification accompanies the Report pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of §18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1964, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


